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Five-Year Financial Summary

BE+=-A=1+—-HILEE
For the year ended 31 December
—F-—F ZT--F ZT-=F ZFT-NF ZF-IF
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
FET FxT FETT FET FTER
Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000

E RESULTS
A Revenue 74,475 93,844 95,074 116,817 93,349
EAH Gross profit 44,387 54,424 52,238 62,471 47,963
b BT 15 7 B & A Profit before income tax 15,148 16,566 15,081 18,068 4,331
FEHiAX Income tax expense (2,695) (2,568) (3,390) (4,088) (2,260)
F X K Profit for the year 12,453 13,998 11,691 13,980 2,071
R+=-—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-—F “Z2-—F “T-=F —“ZT-NF —T-HF
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
FET FET FET FET FEx
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$’000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
WEE Total assets 144,445 168,862 192,382 232,275 218,286
waE Total liabilities (45,105) (63,459) (81,732) (117,670)  (116,839)
g EFE Net assets 99,340 105,403 110,650 114,605 101,447
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Five-Year Financial Summary

U A

Total Revenue
(B8=m1)
(US$ million)

20112015 BAFHER
CAGR of 2011-2015

n %

2011 2012 2013 2014

2015

D ON PR

Revenue-Pafulin
(B8=m1)
(US$ million)

2011-2015 & FEHRR
CAGR of 2011-2015

12.0.

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

WA REKREF A

Revenue-Leflunomide tablets

(B&%1T)
(US$ million)

20112015 8RR ER
CAGR of 2011-2015

-34.0.

WA-BEEEMES A

Revenue-Mycophenolate Mofetil Dispersible tablets
(B8
(US$ million)

20112015 EAFHER
CAGR of 2011-2015

24.9.

2011 2012 2013 2014

2015

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
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Financial Highlights

—E-AF —ZE—mF b=
2015 2014 Change
¥EMTER) Results (US$'000):
A Revenue 93,349 116,817 -20.1%
£ A Gross profit 47,963 62,471 -23.2%
B R A Profit from operations 13,824 18,922 -26.9%
B AT 15 B A i 7 Profit before income tax 4,331 18,068 —76.0%
FiN/NEIE F DN Profit attributable to owners of
P& 15 % F the Company 2,071 13,980 -85.2%
BRIgE D : Profitability:
E F &= Gross profit margin 51.4% 53.5% —2.1%
4R = Net profit margin 2.2% 12.0% -9.8%
TR R E A Basic earnings per share
(FE) (US cents) 0.5 3.4 -2.9
B MR (FHExT) - Financial Position (US$°000):
mEE Total assets 218,286 232,275 -6.0%
PAN/NEIEF DN Equity attributable to owners of
FEAL HE = the Company 101,447 114,605 -11.5%
weF Total liabilities 116,839 117,670 -0.7%
Re MIRTT e Cash and bank balances 42,808 42,891 -0.2%
REBESHRR : Liquidity:
BN R (fF) Current ratio (times) 1.0 1.1 -0.1
F B A & Net debt-to-equity ratio* 46.5% 36.6% +9.9%

* FaEERLFE=(EE - BeRriRT&®) Net debt-to-equity ratio = (Borrowings — cash and bank balances)/Total equity

M

B A B HE

i

o
X
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Financial Highlights

PN
Revenue . W AT F£20.1%

[ JON o Revenue decreased by 20.1%

Revenue
(B&%xT)
(US$ million)

2014 2015

2 EUA

Segment Revenue

W EhE W EVRERRRER W Et#ER
Specialty pharmaceuticals Plant extract and healthcare products Other pharmaceuticals
(A&=x7T) (B&%x7) (B&%xT)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)

2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015

e

iyl

Segment Profits

W ER#E B ENRRERRER W Ht#EeR
Specialty pharmaceuticals Plant extract and healthcare products Other pharmaceuticals
(B&x7) (B&%7T) (B&%7T)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)
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Profit for the year and Net profit margin
W W aRE

Net Profit Net profit margin

(B8%1) (%)

(US$ million)

12.0%

2.2%

2014 2015

BREE
Dividend per share (DPS)

W +HsRRE W RESRKRS

Interim DPS Final DPS
(fl) (&AL
(HK cents) (HK cents)

2014 2015

REERFEE

Total assets and Net assets

W FRBEE W RBEE W FEE
Non-current assets Current assets Net assets
(B8x1) (A8%r1) (B8x1)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)

2014 2015

BAAE B8 a2

BB mE
Financial Highlights

20154F 4L 7 N [£85.2%

fF) 2OR 409.8%

Net profit decreased by 85.2% in 2015
Net profit margin decreased by 9.8%

RHIR B A A3.447E (1

EE AR E R EAS5.998 1

Interim dividend of HK3.44 cents per share
Proposed final dividend of HK5.99 cents per share

BEETP6.0%
FEE T E1.5%
Total assets decreased by 6.0%
Net assets decreased by 11.5%
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“Lansen” or the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
annual report for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 of the
Group to all shareholders of the Company.

Review of 2015

Adversely affected by the transition from a long-standing brand
of leflunomide tablets, Tuoshu, to a new brand, Hepai, and the
development in our healthcare business including certain adjustments
made to the healthcare production capacity, the Group recorded a total
turnover of approximately US$93.3 million, down by 20.1% from last
year; an operating profit of approximately US$13.8 million, down by
26.9% from last year. Furthermore, with the impact of the one-off non-
operating losses including the previously reported ginkgo incident and
flooding in one of our Ningbo warehouses, the net profit of the Group
in 2015 showed a substantial decline compared to last year’s result. In
addition, Ningbo Liwah faced a potential litigation claim brought by one
of its customers, which the Company’s PRC legal counsel on the litigation
is of the opinion that the amount claimed is highly disputable.

2015 was a difficult year but was also a year nurturing a better future for
the Group.

The traditional core business of the Group is specialty pharmaceuticals
used in rheumatology and autoimmune market. The Group has
successfully expanded its business from the rheumatology and
autoimmune segment to dermatology in recent years. The core product
Pafulin used in the rheumatology segment maintained a steady growth
over the past year. With the smooth progress of municipal and provincial
tenders for Hepai, together with Pafulin and our two mycophenolate
mofetil products, the Group still maintains a leading position in the
rheumatology and autoimmune segment. The Group is committed
to being in a leading position for the “rheumatology-autoimmune”
segment and building a leading position in the “medical cosmetics”
market segment. The Group made good progress in dermatology in
2015.

2015 was also highlighted by the launch of new Lansen products.
The Group successfully introduced collagen injectable fillers branded
“Fillderm” and a clinical diagnostic product of Bio-Rad. As the valuable
new product made its debut in the beauty injection segment of the
medical cosmetics market, Fillderm was positioned for the high-end
beauty consumers’ group. Since its launch, Fillderm has begun to achieve
brand awareness and recognition among the experts in the industry.
Leveraging on this brand advantage, the Group will strive to build
additional academic and brand awareness and credibility for Fillderm to
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Chairman’s Statement

achieve its designated sales target by forming a professional sales team
for medical cosmetics. This team will benefit from the Group’s already
well-developed dermatology business. The Group also introduced its
newly acquired clinical diagnostic product of Bio-Rad to the China
market. It is among the most advanced clinical autoimmune diagnostic
platforms in the world. With competitive features such as its fully-
automated, high-speed, precision, and quantitative intelligence, the
clinical diagnostic product of Bio-Rad has a bright prospect in the market
fulfilling the existing demand for clinical diagnostic applications and
complying with the strategic development of ‘precision medical care’
proclaimed by the PRC. Management believes that collagen injectable
fillers branded “Fillderm” and clinical diagnostic product of Bio-Rad will
give an energetic boost to the Group’s existing products, and will bring a
strong growth momentum and earnings contribution to the Group.

In addition, the pharmaceutical product, Sicorten Plus cream, acquired
by the Group from Novartis at the beginning of 2014, obtained a
new Import Drug License (IDL) towards the end of 2015. Novartis also
completed the transfer of the last batch of Sicorten Plus cream to
the Group. The transition period has ended between the Group and
Novartis. The Group is now in a position to launch sales promotions for
Sicorten Plus cream which will accelerate in the second half of 2016.
Sicorten Plus cream has been well recognised by clinicians for triclosan-
sensitive secondary infection and corticosteroid-responsive dermatitis
and eczema diseases.

In 2015, learning a lesson from the ginkgo incident, the Group
conducted a comprehensive and rigorous review of its business
operations; and reorganised its business to clearly separate the operation
and management of its plant extract and pharmaceutical businesses. The
Group also implemented a series of measures to strengthen personnel
management and risk control to improve its product quality.

Outlook of 2016

With the challenging 2015 behind us, Lansen enters a new stage of
development. Management is optimistic about the prospect of the
industry and is confident about the future development of a reorganised
and reinvigorated Company.

The "Guiding Opinions on Promoting the Healthy Development
of Pharmaceutical Industry” issued by the General Office of the
State Council in March 2016 called for the enhancement of the
competitiveness of China’s pharmaceutical industry and the promotion
of the sustained and healthy development of the pharmaceutical
industry. For China to become a generally healthy nation is not only the
dream of the pharmaceutical industry, but also the nation’s emerging

PR B BT R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 1
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development strategy. The pursuit of higher quality health products for
consumers and the enhancement of their affordability are encouraging
the industrial upgrade of the pharmaceutical industry.

With the planned injection of an equity interest in Haotian Holdings
Limited (“Haotian”, and together with its subsidiaries, “Haotian
Group”), the business of the Group will comprise four major segments,
namely pharmaceutical, medical cosmetics, healthcare and investment.
The Group is committed to becoming an all-round healthcare group
featuring high-technology, high profitability and high-growth, and
placing emphasis on creating differentiated and high-quality products
and brands.

The Group will continue to focus on the pharmaceutical segment, and
is committed to specialty pharmaceuticals for the rheumatology and
dermatology and autoimmune market segments. The Group is also
committed to maintaining its leading market position by optimising
sales and marketing to increase the brand awareness of its products.
The Group will expand and strengthen in a comprehensive way the
relationship among hospitals, doctors and patients and accordingly,
create business synergy between its sales of specialty pharmaceuticals
for the treatment of autoimmune disorders in rheumatology and
dermatology and clinical diagnostic reagent business.

The Group will strategically develop the medical cosmetics segment
into another growth driver in order to broaden its income sources. The
existing products of the medical cosmetics segment include Fillderm
collagen injections and the Comfy Collagen Dressing mask (Kefumei).
The Group will diversify its product lines and refine the entire industrial
chain to develop products with low pricing sensitivity. Mergers and
acquisitions and R&D will also be used to expedite the development
of the medical cosmetics segment to ensure long term and steady
development and revenue for this segment.

The plant extract and healthcare business will be centralised in the
healthcare segment. Management will adhere to its “all-round
healthcare” strategy. More resources will be devoted to plant extract
and healthcare products and brand awareness and product image will
be enhanced. Internally, the Group will push forward the restructuring
and further discipline the production and quality management to
ensure quality of products. Externally, management will adjust the
business development strategy to principally secure loyalty of key
customers. By investing in the Haotian Group, the Group will capitalise
on its production capacity to lay a solid foundation for the long-term
development of the healthcare business in the future.



EEREFAERNEZEREMRMIA AR
BERHAERAR (AR D2 REKREER -
MEIAMH  AIAMER-ZE—NE=ZANAK
NREBZRSHEm - ER-_T—XRF=ZA=
TZEMWEEARELATTE  KEE
FH16.1%a A RO MIZEEAI125.088
ET o AEEMR AR EEE S S HAGT
BETA3BIJAEET -

RERK SESEHLERRETEBERS
B P REVIZHE - RERAE - B ERES N
ERAEARPUBFNNEE ETWRF - KK
EEENT-ZE—RFRAELES

Stephen Burnau Hunt
TE

& —F-AF=A=1A

FERE
Chairman’s Statement

The Group's investment platform currently includes an equity interest in
Zhejiang Starry Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (“Starry”). As announced, Starry
successfully launched an initial public offering (“IPO") on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange on 9 March 2016. Based on Starry’s closing price of
RMB41.99 as of 23 March 2016, the market value of the Group’s 16.1%
share in Starry was US$125.0 million. The Group's investment in Starry
was recorded at US$33.7 million under equity accounting.

Looking forward into the future, the Group will proactively seize the
opportunities ushered in by the State’s national strategy — “Healthy China”
and strive to make itself an outstanding listed company with long-term
competitiveness. We are committed to achieving better results in 2016 with
the support and hard work of our entire staff.

Stephen Burnau Hunt
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016

PR B BT R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 3
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Business Review

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately US$93.3 million (2014:
US$116.8 million) for the year ended 31 December 2015, representing a
decrease of 20.1% over last year.

The turnover of the specialty pharmaceuticals segment decreased by
15.1% over last year, while the segment profit decreased by 9.9%. The
three major specialty products of Lansen (Pafulin, leflunomide tablets
and mycophenolate mofetil dispersible tablets) recorded a total revenue
of US$51.1million (2014: US$66.4 million), representing a decrease of
23.0% over last year. Pafulin sustained growth. The decrease was mainly
due to leflunomide tablets sales decreased by 85.3% as compared to
the corresponding period last year (2015: US$2.5 million; 2014: US$17.1
million). In December 2014, Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (“Ningbo Lansen”), the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary,
entered into an exclusive national agency distribution agreement with
Dalian Merro Pharmaceutical Factory in respect of the distribution of
Hepai (leflunomide tablets) for a term of ten years from 1 January 2015
to 31 December 2024, while the distribution agreement relating to
Tuoshu (leflunomide tablets) was not renewed. During this transitional
period in which new products were being launched and promoted,
the sales and gross profit for 2015 was affected adversely. Sales of
mycophenolate mofetil dispersible tablets, an exclusive distribution
agency product, were down by 24.4% (2015: US$5.2 million; 2014:
US$6.9 million) due to temporary short supply by the manufacturer
during the period. Currently, the supply has resumed to normal.

The turnover of the plant extract and healthcare products segment
decreased by 28.8% over last year due to the adjustment on product
development and production capability, and the segment profit
decreased by 40.1%. The turnover from other pharmaceuticals
segment recorded a loss of US$0.8 million due to the ginkgo incident,
representing a decrease of 24.4% over last year.

To summarise, profit from operations amounted to approximately
US$13.8 million (2014: US$18.9 million), representing a decrease of
26.9%. Moreover, with the impact of the one-off non-operating losses
arising from events including the ginkgo incident and flooding in one of
our Ningbo warehouses, profit for the year decreased by 85.3% (2015:
US$2.1 million; 2014: US$14.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

One-off non-operating loss was mainly due to the administrative penalty
and other related expenses of the previously reported ginkgo incident
of approximately RMB24.67 million (equivalent to approximately US$4.0
million), which included the administrative penalty of RMB18.29 million
(approximately US$2.9 million) imposed on Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Ningbo Liwah"), the subsidiary of the Company
in relation to the ginkgo products manufactured by Ningbo Liwah. In
addition, certain inventories of Ningbo Liwah and Ningbo Liwah Plant
Extraction Technology Limited (“Liwah Plant Extract”) were damaged in
the flood caused by a rainstorm in Ningbo in September 2015, and the
damaged inventories of US$4.3 million were written off. Ningbo Liwah
and Liwah Plant Extract submitted an insurance claim to the insurance
company concerned according to the relevant insurance policies for
approximately RMB25.50 million (approximately US$4.1 million).
However, there has been an unreasonable delay in the claim processing
by the insurance company concerned. Ningbo Liwah and Liwah Plant
Extract initiated legal proceedings to speed up the enforcement of the
payment of their claims under the relevant insurance policies. As a result
of the delay, according to the accounting principles, the write-off of
the above damaged inventories due to the claims under the relevant
insurance policies were not recognised as other income in 2015.

Outlook of 2016

Following the challenging year of 2015, Lansen is entering a new stage
of development. Management is optimistic about the prospect of the
industry and is confident about the future development of Lansen. With
the recently announced investment in the Haotian Group, the business
of the Group will comprise four major segments namely pharmaceutical,
medical cosmetics, healthcare and investment. The Group is committed
to becoming an all-round healthcare group featuring high-technology,
high profitability and high-growth, and dedicated to creating
differentiated and high-quality products and brands.

Traditional medicine segment

The “Guiding Opinions on Promoting the Healthy Development of
Pharmaceutical Industry” issued by General Office of the State Council in
March 2016 called for the enhancement of the core competitiveness of
China’s pharmaceutical industry and the promotion of the sustained and
healthy development of the pharmaceutical industry. It is not only the
dream of the pharmaceutical industry that China becomes a generally
healthy nation, but also the emerging development strategy of the
nation. The pursuit of higher quality health products for consumers and
the enhancement of their affordability are driving the upgrade of the
pharmaceutical industry.
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The “Outline of the Strategic Plan on the Development of Traditional
Chinese Medicine (2016-2030)" issued by the State Council in February
2016 and the 2016 Government Work Report recently released also
make it clear that the State encourages the development of Traditional
Chinese Medicine and National Medicine Business. The State places
increasing emphasis on the development of Traditional Chinese Medicine
industry. The Group will seize the opportunity arising from this policy
to carry on multidisciplinary and interdisciplinary joint research using
modern extraction technologies and traditional research methods
applied in Traditional Chinese Medicine so as to produce a batch of
original, pioneering major scientific and technological achievements and
convert such achievements into product, technology and service.

In September 2015, Chinese Medical Association and Chinese Medical
Doctor Association jointly issued the “Notice on Publishing the Selection
Principle and Demonstration of Drugs for Women and Children’s
Specialty Generics, Demonstration of Drugs for First-Aid (Rescue) Drugs
Directly Linked Network for Procurement (Section of Chemical drugs and
Biological products).” The Group will also reformulate the sales strategy
on gynecology and pediatrics products in 2016.

The Group will continue to focus on the pharmaceutical segment, and
is committed to specialty pharmaceuticals used in rheumatology and
dermatology and autoimmune segments. The Group is also committed
to maintaining its leading market position by optimising sales and
marketing to increase brand awareness of its products. The Group will
generally expand and strengthen the relationship with hospitals, doctors
and patients and accordingly, create business synergy between its sales
of specialty pharmaceuticals for the treatment of autoimmune disorders
in rheumatology and dermatology and clinical diagnostic kits business.

Medical cosmetics segment

The Group will strategically develop the medical cosmetics segment
into another growth driver in order to broaden its income sources. The
existing products of the medical cosmetics segment include Fillderm
collagen injections and the Comfy Collagen Dressing mask (Kefumei).
The Group will diversify its product lines and refine the entire industrial
chain by implementation of the strategy of products with low pricing
sensitivity and mergers and acquisitions and R&D so as to expedite the
development of the medical cosmetics segment to ensure long term and
steady development and revenue for this segment.
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As our valuable new product, Fillderm made its debut in the collagen
injection market for micro-surgical beauty and was positioned for the
high-end beauty consumers’ group. It is used in non-surgical cosmetic
treatments by filling in lines, creases and wrinkles to restore facial
contour with skin whitening and rejuvenation effects. Since its launch
in August 2015, Fillderm has gained attention and recognition among
cosmetic surgeons. The Group has strengthened its professional sales
team to tap the private medical institution market in an effort to achieve
its objectives. The Group believes that Fillderm will give an energetic
boost to the medical and cosmetic product lines and will create a
significant new income stream for the Group.

In addition, the Group is endeavouring to build up and develop its own
brands, diversify its product lines and refine the entire industrial chain to
ensure long term and steady development and revenue for this business
segment.

Accelerating development of precision medicine

segment

In June 2015, the Group’s subsidiary Ningbo Lansen entered into a
Distribution Agreement with Bio-Rad Laboratories (Shanghai) Ltd ("Bio-
Rad China”) pursuant to which Ningbo Lansen will be appointed as
the distributor of Bio-Rad China for the clinical diagnostic products
for two years, subject to an extension for a period of twelve months.
The official name of the clinical diagnostic instrument is BioPlex® 2200
which is among the most advanced clinical autoimmune diagnostic
platforms of the world. It is a fully-automated, random access, multiplex
testing system and allows the proprietary diagnostic kits to be applied
as the basis to test for a range of autoimmune and other clinical
diagnostic assays, which is in line with the actual demand of current
clinical application and the strategic direction of “precision medicine”
promulgated by the State and promises a rosy market outlook.

The Group will rely on the advantages of the existing brands in
the rheumatology field to establish a specialty team to carry out
all sales work for the clinical diagnostic kits, enabling the Group to
comprehensively expand and strengthen the relationship between
hospitals, doctors and patients and create business synergy with its
sales of specialty prescription drugs for the treatment of autoimmune
disorders in respect of rheumatology and dermatology.
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Since the signing of the product distribution agreement, the Group
has completed equipment installation in and training for body-check
department and laboratories of rheumatology and autoimmune of 12
sizable Class A hospitals across China as at 31 December 2015 and
the products will be put into clinical application. Therefore, the Group
obtained “2015 Best New Market Pathfinder Award” issued by Bio-Rad.

Listing of Starry
In June 2015, China Securities Regulatory Commission announced that
Starry, an associate of the Group, has successfully passed the initial public
offering review. The listing of Starry was completed on 9 March 2016
(stock code: 603520).

Starry is a leading enterprise for the production of active ingredient used
in X-CT non-ionic contrast agent, and its production and sales volume
of active ingredient used in iohexol ranks first in China. Upon listing of
Starry, 16.1% of total issued share capital of Starry was directly held by
the Company. The Group guarantees that it will not sell any of Starry’s
shares within one year from the date of its listing.

Product Development of healthcare industry and

strategic adjustment of production capacity

The ginkgo incident also led to strategic adjustment by the Group on
the product development and production capacity of its healthcare
business. Lansen has announced recently on in 24 March to invest in
the Haotian Group to leverage on Haotian as the platform for joint
development of plant extract and healthcare business. This is a mutually
beneficial transaction. Upon the explicit separation of plant extract and
pharmaceutical business, Lansen can expand its production capacity and
technology of plant extract within a short period, while avoiding the loss
of plant extraction business. Following the transformation and expansion
in production capacity, Yangling Dailyhealth Bio-Engineering Technology
Company Limited (“Yangling Dailyhealth”) can now undertake a greater
business volume. Upon the completion of the capital injection, it is
expected that the Group will fully capitalise on the synergies in respect of
its plant extract and healthcare business. In order to further develop its
healthcare business, Haotian platform is conducting the feasibility study
on building an industrial chain of healthcare products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Review

Revenue

The Group recorded a revenue of US$93.3 million (2014: US$116.8
million) for the year ended 31 December 2015, representing a decrease
of 20.1% over last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, revenue generated from specialty
pharmaceuticals amounted to US$60.1 million (2014: US$70.7 million),
representing a decrease of 15.1% over the corresponding period last
year. Revenue generated from plant extract and healthcare products
amounted to US$25.5 million (2014: US$35.9 million), representing a
decrease of 28.8% over the same period of last year, while revenue
generated from other pharmaceuticals amounted to US$7.7 million
(2014: US$10.2 million), representing a decrease of 24.4% over the
corresponding period last year.

The aggregate revenue from the three core products (Pafulin,
leflunomide tablets and mycophenolate mofetil dispersible tablets)
amounted to US$51.1 million (2014: US$66.4 million), decreased by
23.0% as compared to the corresponding period last year, of which
leflunomide tablets and mycophenolate mofetil dispersible tablets
decreased by 85.3% and 24.4% respectively, as compared to the
corresponding period last year. The three core products accounted for
approximately 54.8% of the total revenue of the Group. The decrease in
the revenue of the Group for the period was mainly due to the transition
of Tuoshu and Hepai under leflunomide tablets in 2015, which has
exerted certain pressure on the sales during 2015.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded a gross profit
of US$48.0 million (2014: US$62.5 million), representing a decrease of
23.2% over the corresponding period last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the overall gross profit margin
was 51.4% (2014: 53.5%), representing a decrease of 2.1% over the
corresponding period last year.

The decrease in overall gross profit margin as compared to the
corresponding period last year was mainly attributable to the changes
in product sales mix resulted from the transition of Tuoshu (leflunomide
tablets) and Hepai (leflunomide tablets).
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Other income

Other income, primarily including transition income, government
grants and interest income from bank deposits, amounted to US$5.3
million (2014: US$3.6 million) for the year ended 31 December 2015,
representing an increase of 45.9% over last year. Government grants
primarily came from the local government and were partly used as
recognition of the Group's efforts in developing high-technology
pharmaceutical products. Transition income represented the transfer of
profit generated from the sales of pharmaceutical product by Novartis.

Selling and distribution expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the selling and distribution
expenses of the Group decreased by 18.9% to US$27.2 million from
US$33.5 million in the corresponding period last year. The proportion of
the selling and distribution expenses of the Group to the total revenue of
the Group was broadly leveled at 29.1% for the year ended 31 December
2015 as compared to 28.7% in the corresponding period last year.

Management believed that the marketing model and academic
promotional advantages of specialty pharmaceuticals are the key factors
in maintaining its leading market position. The Group endeavoured to
enhance market recognition of specialty pharmaceutical products and
actively launched patient education activities. By organising academic
conferences across China, doctors and patients were able to have a
better understanding of the pharmacology, efficacy and benefits of
these products.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2015
amounted to US$12.2 million (2014: US$13.7 million), representing a
decrease of 10.5% over last year. The proportion of the administrative
expenses of the Group to the total revenue of the Group increased by
1.4% to 13.1% for the year ended 31 December 2015 from 11.7% in the
corresponding period last year. The increase was mainly due to inflation
and the expansion of the Group's scale of operation.
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Loss from flood

Certain inventories of Ningbo Liwah and Liwah Plant Extract were
damaged in the flood caused by a rainstorm in Ningbo in September
2015, and the damaged inventories of US$4.3 million were required to
be written off as a result. Ningbo Liwah and Liwah Plant Extract made
an insurance claim to the insurance company concerned according to
the relevant insurance policies for approximately RMB25.50 million
(equivalent to approximately US$4.1 million). However, there was an
unreasonable delay in the claim processing by the insurance company
concerned. Ningbo Liwah and Liwah Plant Extract are currently initiating
legal proceedings for the settlement of their claims. Accordingly, such
insurance claim proceeds were unable to be accounted for as other
income in 2015, which would have offset the written-off of the damaged
inventories mentioned above.

Administrative penalty and other related expenses of ginkgo
products

In 2015, according to the investigation result of the China Food and
Drug Administration and the relevant regulatory authorities in China, the
production and sales of sub-standard ginkgo tablets by Ningbo Liwah
were determined to be in breach of the relevant rules and regulations
in China, an administrative penalty of RMB18.29 million (equivalent to
approximately US$2.9 million) was imposed on Ningbo Liwah. Other
related expenses arising from the ginkgo incident amounted to RMB6.38
million (equivalent to approximately US$1.0 million), mainly attributable
to the loss on destroying ginkgo tablets and the legal costs thereof.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2015, finance costs of the Group
increased by US$0.4 million, mainly due to the increase in average bank
borrowings.

Share of post-tax profit of an associate
Share of post-tax profit of an associate for the year ended 31 December
2015 amounted to US$2.2 million (2014: US$2.2 million).

Income tax expense

Ningbo Liwah and Liwah Plant Extract obtained the certification as high
technology enterprises and enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15%.
In addition, Bozhou Lansen Herbal Industry Limited (“Bozhou Lansen”) is
engaged in certain qualified agricultural business in the PRC with relevant
profits exempted from enterprise income tax.

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 2 1
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According to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of
China (the "EIT Law") and the implementation rules of the income tax
law, except for Ningbo Liwah, Liwah Plant Extract and Bozhou Lansen,
the enterprise income tax rate for other subsidiaries in the PRC was 25%.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2015 amounted to US$2.1 million, representing a decrease
by 85.2% or US$11.9 million from US$14.0 million in the corresponding
period last year.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

The Group primarily finances its working capital and other capital
requirements by net cash generated from operating activities and resorts
to external financing including bank borrowings from time to time when
the operating cash flow is insufficient to meet capital requirements.

As at 31 December 2015, net current assets and current ratio of the
Group were approximately US$2.6 million (31 December 2014: US$13.2
million) and 1.0 (31 December 2014: 1.1) respectively.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to US$19.0 million (31 December 2014: US$15.8 million). As
at 31 December 2015, the Group had pledged bank deposits of US$23.8
million (31 December 2014: US$27.1 million) to secure bank borrowings.

The Group'’s borrowings as at 31 December 2015 amounted to US$90.0
million (31 December 2014: US$84.8 million), of which US$88.9 million
is repayable within 1 year (31 December 2014: fully repayable within 1
year).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's net debt-to-equity ratio was
46.5% (31 December 2014: 36.6%), calculated by net debt (borrowings
minus cash and bank balances) at the end of the period over total equity.

The exposure of the Group’s transactional currency to foreign currency
risk was minimal as most of the financial assets and liabilities held by the
subsidiaries of the Group are denominated in the respective functional
currency of the subsidiaries. The Group currently does not have any
foreign currency hedging policy. However, management would closely
monitor foreign exchange exposure and consider hedging foreign
currency exposure when necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2015, certain bank deposits and bill receivables in
an aggregate carrying amount of US$29.1 million (31 December 2014:
certain bank deposits, bill receivables, properties, plants and equipment
and prepaid land lease payment in an aggregate carrying amount of
US$50.1 million) were pledged to secure banking facilities and bank
borrowings.

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's capital expenditure contracted for
but not provided in the financial statements amounted to US$11.9 million
(31 December 2014: US$6.7 million).

Contingent liabilities

On 6 July 2015, the Company announced that according to an
announcement published by the holding company of Shenzhen
Neptunus Pharmaceutical Company Limited (the “Claimant”), the
Claimant, as the Plaintiff, has initiated legal proceedings (the “Litigation”)
against Ningbo Liwah, the Company’s subsidiary. On 24 August 2015,
Ningbo Liwah received the writ in relation to the Litigation. On 15
October 2015, Ningbo Liwah and the Claimant exchanged evidences
in the preliminary stage. In the Litigation, the Claimant alleged that it
had suffered certain losses due to the use of ginkgo extract supplied by
Ningbo Liwah in Claimant’s products. The Claimant is therefore seeking
damages of approximately RMB70 million (approximately US$11.2 million
as at 31 December 2015) from Ningbo Liwah, as well as relevant legal
fees. The Group has sought preliminary opinion on the Litigation from
its legal counsel in the PRC, who, based on the information available as
of the date of the consolidated financial statements, is of the opinion
that the amount claimed by the Claimant is highly disputable. However,
as the Group is not able to reliably assess the amount of provision, the
Group has not made any provision against this Litigation. The Company
will, in accordance with the applicable laws, make every effort to protect
its interests and its shareholders’ interests, actively respond to the case
and defend its position vigorously. The Company will closely monitor
the development of this matter and make further announcements if and
when there are any significant developments in relation to it.
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Material acquisitions and disposals

On 24 March 2016, Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited which was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“Lansen (BVI)"), a wholly and
directly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the subscription
agreement with Haotian, pursuant to which Lansen (BVI) agrees to
subscribe for the shares in Haotian. In connection with the subscription
agreement, Lansen (BVI), Cathay International Biotechnology and
Pharmaceutical (China) Limited (“Cl Biotechnology”) and Haotian also
entered into the shareholders’ agreement on 24 March 2016, in relation
to the management of Haotian and the rights of the Lansen (BVI) and
Cl Biotechnology as shareholders to Haotian. Haotian is an investment
holding company and indirectly wholly owns Yangling Dailyhealth
and Xian Haotian Bio-engineering Technology Company Limited
("Xian Haotian"”), both of which are incorporated in the PRC. Yangling
Dailyhealth and Xian Haotian are primarily engaged in the production
and sale of plant extracts as ingredients for health products. On 24
March 2016, Lansen (BVI) subscribed for approximately 19.1% equity
interest in Haotian at a consideration of RMB33.0 million (approximately
US$5.0 million) of which RMB28.0 million would be settled in cash and
RMBS5.0 million by way of transfer of the entire issued share capital of
Natural Dailyhealth Tech Limited.

Human resources

The Group had over 820 employees as at 31 December 2015 with the
employee costs of US$13.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2015. Staff remuneration of the Group, including salary, allowances,
medical insurance and provident fund, is determined with reference to
individual performance, professional qualifications, experience in the
industry and relevant market trends.

Salaries of employees of the Group have been maintained at a
competitive level and are reviewed annually, with reference to the
relevant labour market and economic conditions. The Group provides
career advancement training in the form of internal courses and
workshops for the staff and encourages them to participate in training
programmes related to the Group's business.
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Executive Director

Mr. LIU Bang Min, age 44, is an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of our Company. Mr. Liu is responsible for the overall
business strategy and corporate development of our Group. Mr. Liu
joined our Group in September 2012 and has over 20 years of experience
in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Liu
worked with GlaxoSmithKline China, Wyeth Pharmaceutical China and
Abbott China. He is experienced in the field of rheumatology and the
pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in medical
imaging from Zhejiang University School of Medicine (formerly Zhejiang
Medical University) in 1993.

Mr. HOU Song, age 40, is an executive Director and the chief financial
officer of the Company. Mr. Hou joined the Group in September
2015. Mr. Hou has over 15 years of experience in finance, accounting
and corporate management in Hong Kong and mainland China. Mr.
Hou has many years of experience in financial management in large
pharmaceutical companies. He had worked as deputy finance officer of
the Company from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Hou graduated from Sun Yat-sen
University with a bachelor of economics degree in accounting in 2000
and, in 2015, obtained a MBA degree in the MBA Program in Finance
offered by The Chinese University of Hong Kong in collaboration with
Tsinghua University. Mr. Hou is a qualified accountant in the People’s
Republic of China.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Stephen Burnau HUNT, age 76, is a non-executive Director and
chairman of our Company. Mr. Hunt joined the Cathay International
Group in 1992. He is the deputy chairman and a non-executive director
of Cathay International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
London Stock Exchange. Mr. Hunt was formerly the managing director
of Aliant Capital, an investment company in Hong Kong. Mr. Hunt,
a US citizen, spent 24 years with Bank of America in international
management and lending positions. Mr. Hunt was senior vice president
and area general manager for Bank of America located in Hong Kong.
Mr. Hunt was president of the American Chamber of Commerce in Hong
Kong in 1989. In 1990, Mr. Hunt was appointed to the Hong Kong
Government'’s International Business Committee, and from 1989 to 1991
was a member of the Hong Kong Government’s Advisory Committee on
Free Trade. Mr. Hunt is currently a trustee of the American Chamber of
Commerce’s Charitable Foundation. Mr. Hunt also served as a member
of the Main Board and GEM Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange
from November 2004 to June 2011. From 2012 to 2015, Mr. Hunt was a
director and Chief Executive Officer of Solar Plus (HK) Limited, a private
investment company incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Hunt obtained
a bachelor of arts degree from Duke University in 1961 and a master’s
degree in international affairs from Columbia University in 1963.

Mr. LEE Jin Yi, age 58, is a non-executive Director and deputy chairman
of our Company. Mr. Lee joined the CIH Group in January 2010 and is
the chief executive officer of CIH. Mr. Lee has extensive experience in
the banking industry and held various senior management positions
with major financial institutions over the past 20 years. Mr. Lee has been
a director of Xiamen City Commercial Bank. Prior to joining the CIH
Group, Mr. Lee was the managing director and chief executive officer of
Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited for five and a half years and a director
of Fubon Financial Holding Company Limited. Prior to that, Mr. Lee was
the managing director and China senior country officer of J.P. Morgan
Chase & Co. and chairman of the Hong Kong Management Committee
of J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. Mr. Lee was appointed as an independent
director of Taichung Bank on 22 June 2011. Taichung Bank is listed on
Taiwan Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee obtained a master’s degree in business
administration from Harvard University in 1984.



SENEPREEABREE

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

BEKE 565 BRARAIFNITES - 5k
ER—NANEFEMBECHER - —BEEBNE
BERE BEANSELEBHETRERE
e - FEATEFECAHEB R R B H R KB
REBEE - HEER—NNZFRMMNKE
MEBLEE2 L2 R— NN\ RERIL D
HAEBMEHEELTZ246  WR—AN=ZFR
B RE RS EUS A 2 B BB 2 (7 (Licentiate
degree in law) °

BERLE 3958 RARAFATESE - 2
IR -_ZFT_FMBABZERZERAERA
Al ERRNECXERILEEEERR R
AR EEEEMBELTE - BlkL
HEEXNBLEEEEBHEBRUAFLR -
EMBERA - S xt R —KEBEZHK
NREMEAMEEREEEAN AERENRAOR
ZARED NIRRT - B XN
NEREXBE=ZFMTABKEERONEIHE
BEL B -

BMESaL 4558  BRARBIERTES - 8
HER-_ZTZTLFMBACHEE - B L5l
R=—NAAREFER-ANNERBEX D
LEMEstE - MAETEEAR/TE—KER
TEESENMEHRN BEZSEET
WEERREEAMBRERNEHMHEER
AIEEHHERE - TR - AN _FREBR
RAEEHBEREX -

B ut 5758 RARFFATES N
RCOHWARAWE CHEBHRIAHFREE
EENIE EXLTBAEHEERKREEED
LEEE EXRLA-NNOFEXRREL
EFMAGEREE AN N—FEXRS
HFAREAMAEEREE YH_FT
NEFERBABERABIFIFEANAE
8 - NNNFR BRAREFFUE
FITBABREE L UNB—NNEFE -
BRREEARWELRAGEL K- @
F_AMBAHEER  EXEIRNEFHES
Al =P R BRAD RSB E L F - ¥
LEMN—NWN\—FREFEREX  BEIH
EENEHERANE XN -AN=ZFWRF
SRTBRAKXEXE -

Mr. TANG Jun, age 56, is a non-executive Director of our Company.
Mr. Tang joined the CIH Group in 1994 and has been working in the
business development department, responsible for exploring investment
opportunities in the pharmaceutical industries for our Group. Currently,
Mr. Tang is the vice president and head of business development of the
CIH Group. Mr. Tang obtained a bachelor of philosophy degree from
Hangzhou University in 1982, a master of philosophy degree from Beijing
Normal University in 1986 and a licentiate degree in law from Lapland
University, Finland in 1993.

Ms. LIU Xue Zi, age 39, is a non-executive Director of our Company.
Ms. Liu joined Cathay International Holdings Limited in 2002 and has
been working in the corporate development department and asset
management department. She is currently vice president and co-head of
asset management of Cathay. Ms. Liu have over 14 years of experience
in mergers and acquisitions and asset management. Before joining
Cathay, Ms. Liu was head of the Asia-Pacific region of a US network
infrastructure company, responsible for the start-up and expansion of
the company’s business in Asia. Ms. Liu graduated from the School
of Economics of University of San Francisco, majoring in business
administration, in 1999.

Ms. TAO Fang Fang, age 45, is a non-executive Director of our
Company. Ms. Tao joined the CIH Group in 2007. Ms. Tao became
a professional accountant and a registered accountant in 1996 and
1998 respectively. Before being promoted to the position of director of
finance department of a leading pharmaceutical group in China, Ms.
Tao worked as financial controller for a manufacturing company and
financial manager for a marketing and sales company under the control
of that group. Ms. Tao graduated from the department of accounting of
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in 1992.

Ms. YIP Pui Ling, Rebecca, age 57, is a non-executive Director of
our Company, company secretary of CIH, vice president and head of
asset management of the CIH Group. Ms. Yip is responsible for the
management of the operations of the CIH Group's invested projects. Ms.
Yip is a fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since 1994, a fellow of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
since 1991, and an associate of The Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales since 2008. Ms. Yip is also an associate of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators since 1988 and The
Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries since 1994. Prior to joining
the CIH Group in February 1994, Ms. Yip worked for KPMG as an auditor
and tax consultant for 7 years. Ms. Yip graduated from Lingnan College
where she obtained a diploma in business administration and accounting
in 1981 and a honours diploma in accounting in 1983.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Kee Huen, Michael, age 64, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Mr. Chan joined our Group on 9
April 2010. He has over 33 years’ experience in external audit, IT audit,
training, accounting and finance, company secretarial and corporate
administration, MIS management, internal audit, information security,
risk management and compliance. Mr. Chan is a fellow of The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants; and a fellow and specialist in
information technology of CPA Australia. Mr. Chan is also associate or
member of the following professional bodies: The Hong Kong Computer
Society and the Life Management Institute. He is also a certified
information systems auditor with the Information Systems Audit and
Control Association and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
Mr. Chan is the chief executive of C&C Advisory Services Limited, senior
advisor of New Frontier Computer Systems Limited and was an adjunct
professor in the School of Accounting and Finance of the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University from 1 September 2010 to 31 August 2014. On
19 February 2016, Mr. Chan was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of K.H. Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1557).
Mr. Chan has worked at CMG Life Assurance Limited (formerly Jardine
CMG Life Assurance Limited) from 1991 to 1996 and his last position
was general manager, compliance. He was the head of internal audit
of Dao Heng Bank/Guoco Group Limited from 1996 to 2000, the head
of compliance in Greater China, managing director of DBS Bank (Hong
Kong) Limited from 2001 to 2003, the group financial controller of Lam
Soon (Hong Kong) Limited from 2004 to 2005, the director of Quality
Assurance of HKICPA in 2006 and the head of group compliance of Ping
An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Limited from December 2006
to April 2009. Mr. Chan graduated with a higher diploma in accountancy
from Hong Kong Polytechnic in 1976.

Mr. TANG Chiu Ping, Raymond, age 67, is an independent non-
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Tang joined our Group on 9
April 2010. He has been in the executive search field since 1985 when
he joined the Hong Kong office of Russell Reynolds Associates. Mr. Tang
was formerly chairman, Greater China at Russell Reynolds Associates
until late 2008 when he retired from the industry. Mr. Tang was educated
in the United States at Tufts University in Boston, Massachusetts where
he obtained a bachelor of arts degree in 1972; and he graduated with
a master’s degree in public health from the Yale University School of
Medicine in New Haven, Connecticut in 1975. Mr. Tang has served as
a member of non-governmental organisations such as the Hong Kong
Council of Academic Accreditation and Vocational Qualifications.
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Mr. Fritz Heinrich HORLACHER, age 66, is an independent non-
executive Director of our Company. Mr. Horlacher joined our Group
on 10 February 2011. He has over 30 years' experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Horlacher started his pharmaceutical
career with Roche Australia in 1974. Mr. Horlacher worked at Zuellig
Pharma Asia Pacific (“Zuellig Pharma”) from 1981 to 2008 and was the
chief executive officer of Zuellig Pharma from 1995 to 2008. He was
responsible for its operations servicing more than 125 international
research-based pharmaceutical manufacturers in the Asia Pacific region.
Mr. Horlacher retired as chief executive officer of Zuellig Pharma in 2008.
From 2005 to 2007, Mr. Horlacher was an alternate director of Invida
Group Pte Ltd. Mr. Horlacher was a non-executive director of Australian
Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (a company listed on the Australian
Securities Exchange) from 2002 to 2004. Mr. Horlacher was the Asia
representative on the board of directors of the International Federation
of Pharmaceutical Wholesalers from 2002 to 2008. He was regional
director of Asia for the Pharmaceutical Wholesale Division of Alliance
Boots and was also a director and chairman of the Board of Guangzhou
Pharmaceutical Corporation from 2011 to 2013. Mr. Horlacher was a
non-executive member of the Advisory Board of BSN Medical, a global
medical device company based in Hamburg, Germany, from January
2013 to August 2015. Mr. Horlacher graduated in 1969 from Montana
Institute in Switzerland and from Union College in South Africa in 1972.

Senior Management

Mr. DU Du, age 38, is the business development director of the Group.
Mr. Du joined the Group in June 2015 and has 17 years of working
experience in pharmaceutical distribution. He had worked for ten years
(seven years and three years in Pfizer and Sumitomo Dainippon Pharma
Co., Ltd. respectively) in pharmaceutical commerce. He had worked in
Sumitomo Dainippon Pharma as manager of national commerce. Mr.
Du graduated from Southwest Jiaotong University with a post-graduate
MBA degree in 2014.

Mr. ZHAO Yu, age 43, is the Group human resources director who
has over 19 years’ human resources management experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining the Lansen Group, he worked at
Pfizer, Roche and Merck in senior human resources positions. Mr. Zhao
obtained a bachelor’s degree in business management from Renmin
University of China in 1996.
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Mr. TANG Taibin, age 45, is the general manager of Ningbo Lansen.
Mr. Tang joined the Group in August, 2015 and has over 18 years of
experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining the Group, he
worked in GlaxoSmithKline (China) as general manager of anti-allergy
department. Mr. Tang obtained a bachelor’s degree in geography from
Nanjing University in 1992 and an EMBA from the Lingnan College of
Sun Yat-sen University in 2014.

Mr. HONG Zhou, age 47, is the CEO assistant and general manager
of Ningbo Liwah. Mr. Hong joined our Group in November 2015 and
has over 25 years' experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Hong
previously worked for Jiangxi Food and Drug Administration, Novartis,
Bayer and Abbott. Mr. Hong obtained his bachelor’s degree in analytical
chemistry from Jiangxi University (now Nanchang University) in 1989.

Mr. CHENG Hua Zhong, age 43, is the director of operations of the
Group. Mr. Cheng joined the Group in December 2001 and has over 19
years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Cheng was employed by a company within the Shenzhen
Sanjiu Group from 1996 to 2001. Mr. Cheng obtained a bachelor of
science degree in computer science majoring in information science from
Fudan University in 1996.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries and associate are set out in notes 18 and 29 to the
financial statements.

Results and Appropriations
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 69.

An interim dividend of HK3.44 cents (approximately US0.44 cents) per
share amounting to HK$14,276,000 (approximately US$1,841,000) in
aggregate was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK5.99 cents (approximately US0.77 cents) per share to the
shareholders on the register of members of the Company on 14 June
2016, amounting to HK$24,859,000 (approximately US$3,207,000) in
aggregate, subject to approval by the shareholders in general meeting.

Fixed Assets

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Borrowings
Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in note 24 to the
financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

f& B BRA 7] Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 3 1




FERHE
Report of the Directors

RAT 20 2K
R-ZZE—HE+-A=+—0 RBESH
ERFRHE ARAZANKHESES
21,145,000 70 - XA FRIHERFRN 2 S B FF
B & B 5 R KR T 5E23 o

FEEFRMER

FRN AEEZRAARFHEERELEAER
HEBBLN215%  MEFRAZEFEEAR
EEEEEREA6% (ZE—T0F 11.0%) o

FRN AEEBzZAAHEERBAEGASE
BREEREI3 2% (ZE—UF : 44.6%) © TMHE
FRAZHERMAEERBERE02% (=
T —I04F :15.0%) °

5 HETHRAREEEHAEAED
AIBRAS% A £ 2 RATBRE - KT R
CEES S FPNY J-BESoLi £ o1
A3 -

5=
REAREEARESHE  ARAAIZESN
T

HITES:

BIEREE(FTH )

BT (B A8
(R—FB—NEF=H=1HEZT)

FHPITESE:

Stephen Burnau Hunt4E 4 (% &)
FEEELEGERE)

BB E

RS LT (R=ZF—NF=A=1HFF)
EMBrt(R=ZF—NF=H=1+HFE)
BELRR T (R=ZF—NF=ZA=1HEZF)

BIAFHITES:

PRACIE o4

B IR S A&

Fritz Heinrich Horlacher %¢ 4

32

Annual Report 2015 & #f

Distributable Reserves of the Company

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to US$21,145,000. Details of the movements
in the reserves of the Company during the year are set out in note 23 to
the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for less than 21.5% of the Group’s total
sales and sales from the largest customer included therein amounted to
4.6% (2014: 11.0%).

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for 43.2% (2014: 44.6%) of the Group’s
total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 10.2% (2014: 15.0%).

At no time during the year did a Director, a close associate of a Director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has an
interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Director:

Mr. Liu Bang Min (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Hou Song (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 30 March 2016)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt (Chairman)

Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Tang Jun

Ms. Tao Fang Fang (resigned on 30 March 2016)

Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca (resigned on 30 March 2016)
Ms. Liu Xue Zi (appointed on 30 March 2016)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael

Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond

Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher
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In accordance with article 108 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Lee Jin Yi, Mr. Liu Bang Min, Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael and Mr.
Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting ("AGM") has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and

Debentures

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to The Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

BFRERTT GAQXTIESHT

E5nA 55 HEBERERE BRAEZEDL

Percentage of

Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of the

Name of Director Capacity shares held Company

FEBELE EafBA 500,000 0.12%
Mr. Lee Jin Yi Beneficial owner (7 2)
(Long position)

Stephen Burnau Hunt %t & Em#EBA 100,000 0.02%
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt Beneficial owner (47 8)

R EXFrREEIN RZE-—RF+ZA=+
—B BEEE SRTBABREBEA
RARAREA[EBER Z ARG - 48
RO ERETEAREES MG ERD

(Long position)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, Chief Executive nor
their associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 December 2015 which was required to be recorded
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pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

Directors’ Share Options in Cathay International

Holdings Limited

Cathay International Holdings Limited (“CIH"), the Company’s ultimate
holding company, operates share option plan for the purpose of aligning
the interests of executives and employees with those of shareholders of
CIH and to enable the development of CIH and its subsidiaries’ business
by attracting, retaining and motivating personnel with appropriate skills.
Mr. Lee Jin Yi, Mr. Tang Jun, Ms. Liu Xue Zi, Ms. Yip Pui Ling Rebecca
and Ms. Tao Fang Fang, the directors of the Company, were granted the
share options in the capacity as employees of CIH. The share option plan
of CIH was adopted on 3 June 2010 and unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

Details of the share options granted to the Company’s directors to
subscribe for shares in CIH were as follows:

BREZAE
Number of share options
R-ZZ—-RF R-Z-RHF BRE R
EEHE —A—8 FAREY t=ZA=+—-H RHAH BRETEDD TEE
At Granted At Date of Exercise price
1 January during the 31 December grant of Exercise period of of share
Name of Director 2015 year 2015 share options share options options
(Fff X a) (E+)
(note a) (pence)
BRELLE 2,300,000 — 2,300,000 —ET—=FMA=H —E-RFWMA=HZE 29.88
Mr. Lee Jin Yi —T-+tFWAZRH
3 April 2012 3 April 2015 to 2 April 2017
2,000,000 — 2,000,000 —E—=F=A=-++tH ZZE—-R"F=ZA=-+tHZE
—E-)\F=ZA=+RH
27 March 2013 27 March 2016 to 26 March 2018 32.55
4,142,353 — 4,142,353 —ZT—MFMA—H —E-tFMA—HZE
—ZT—hF=R=+—8
1 April 2014 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2019 37.275
— 2,250,000 2,250,000 —E—HAF=A=+—H ZZE-)\F=ZA=+—H=Z
—EZTFE=ZFA=+H
31 March 2015 31 March 2018 to 30 March 2020 20.00
8,442,353 2,250,000 10,692,353
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BRERE
Number of share options
R=ZZ—-HF R-ZZ-—1F BRE B R e
EEpnE —H—8 FREYE +t=HA=+—8 RHHEH BRETESRE THEE
At Granted At Date of Exercise price
1 January during the 31 December grant of Exercise period of of share
Name of Director 2015 year 2015 share options share options options
(Fff zEa) (E+)
(note a) (pence)
mEEAE 200,000 — 200,000 —E—=—FMWA=H —E-RFEWMA=HZE 29.88
Mr. Tang Jun —ZE—+EWA=H
3 April 2012 3 April 2015 to 2 April 2017
160,000 — 160,000 —ET—=F=ZA=-++tH —ZT—X"FZA=-F+tHZE 32.55
—T-\HF=RB=+H
27 March 2013 27 March 2016 to 26 March 2018
320,000 — 320,000 —E—WEFW@A—H —E-tFMA—HZE 37.275
—T-AF=RA=+—8H
1 April 2014 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2019
— 200,000 200,000 —E—RF=A=+—H ZZE—\F=A=+—H=Z 20.00
—ZT-TF=A=1+H
31 March 2015 31 March 2018 to 30 March 2020
680,000 200,000 880,000
gEEx+ 360,000 — 360,000 —E——FMWA=H —E-RFMA=HZE 29.88
Ms. Liu Xue Zi —E—-EFMA=H
3 April 2012 3 April 2015 to 2 April 2017
240,000 — 240,000 —ET—=F=A=++tH ZT-R"FE=ZA=-++tHZE 32.55
—ET-)\F=ZA=+RH
27 March 2013 27 March 2016 to 26 March 2018
500,000 — 500,000 —ZT—MFMA—H —E-tFMA—HZE 37.275
—2-AF=A=+—8
1 April 2014 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2019
— 330,000 330,000 —ZE—AF=A=+—H ZZT—N\F=A=+—H=%F 20.00
—E-TFE=ZA=+H
31 March 2015 31 March 2018 to 30 March 2020
1,100,000 330,000 1,430,000
B Lt 80,000 — 80,000 —ET——FWA=H —T-hFWA=RE 29.88
Ms. Yip Pui Ling —T—tHFMAZH
Rebecca 3 April 2012 3 April 2015 to 2 April 2017
40,000 — 40,000 —E—=F=A=++H ZT—X"F=ZA=-++tH=Z 32.55
—ZE-)\F=ZA=+KH
27 March 2013 27 March 2016 to 26 March 2018
230,000 — 230,000 —ZT—MFMA—H —T-—tFWA—-BZE 37.275
—F-NEF=A=t—8
1 April 2014 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2019
— 120,000 120,000 —E—HF=A=+—H Z=2—)/\$=ZA=+—H= 20.00
—T-TF=A=+AH
31 March 2015 31 March 2018 to 30 March 2020
350,000 120,000 470,000
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BRERE
Number of share options
R=ZZ—-HF R-ZE—HF BRE B BR e
EEpnE —RA—H FREYE +t=HA=+—8 BRHEH BRESTESRE TEE
At Granted At Date of Exercise price
1 January during the 31 December grant of Exercise period of of share
Name of Director 2015 year 2015 share options share options options
(Fff ZEa) (E+)
(note a) (pence)
b5 5+ 100,000 — 100,000 —E—=—F MW A=H —E-RAFEWMA=HZE 29.88
Ms. Tao Fang Fang —ZE—+tEWAZH
3 April 2012 3 April 2015 to 2 April 2017
60,000 — 60,000 —ET—=Ff=ZA=-++tH —E—ARE=ZA=-t+tHZE 32.55
—T-\F=A=+AH
27 March 2013 27 March 2016 to 26 March 2018
130,000 — 130,000 —ZE—WF M A—H —E-tFMA—HZE 37.275
—ET-hF=A=+—H
1 April 2014 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2019
— 100,000 100,000 —E—HF=ZA=+—H —Z—N\F=ZA=+—H=Z 20.00
—E-TF=A=+H
31 March 2015 31 March 2018 to 30 March 2020
290,000 100,000 390,000
10,862,353 3,000,000 13,862,353
Bt 5 Note:
(a) BREZGEBAHDERLAME=FHEER (a) The vesting date of share options is at the expiry of the three year period from

MBS E MR

R Eatoh - RERERIERE - ARF] - HER
XA 3 B AT ] B B 2 Bl Bk (R AR Y A B B AR
RRERZHEZETXNT - BEARBRESAE
BEAARRR S EMEMAR 2 B HERE
ELZHTAMESHN = -

ESRERSNPzER

BEALNR - HREELQR - B R EA R M
BRARASHEANATLESTEEXIMEREAE
EXBHRZEAGH  RERAFATMHE
BADARB R -

FERR

R-ZE-—RFF+-_A=+t—8 ARAEREE
HZRMEHRPIFEBRTFE T BRRAME
T BUERBEEEETESTZERN AT
BRITEMEARBDENARA D EITIRAH
BEZHBRENAR -
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the date of grant, subject to satisfaction of performance conditions.

Except for the above, at no time during the year was the Company, any
of its holding company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding company,
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2015, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows
that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain
Directors, the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company.
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BEERTT HMAATEET
ZEREAR BEZED L

Percentage of
Number of the issued share

BIREIR B A E RIHE (PR BRAA]
("2 2= B8 e 88 2 (R ) 1)

Cathay International Pharma Manufacture
and Distribution (China) Limited

("Cl Pharma China"”)

BEEREEEMRMEEXER AT

EES0 =33

Cathay International Changchun
Biotechnology and Pharmaceutical (China)

Limited (“CIC")

BZRBEEREEY MR EZ (PR BRAF
(BB R AEY Bl &R 2% (hE)])
Cathay International Biotechnology &
Pharmaceutical (China) Limited
("Cl Biotech & Pharma China"”)
B R B R B8 B B PR A A ([ 22 B R 8 4% )
Cathay International Pharmaceutical Limited

(“ClP”)

BEHEEREMRMER AR (EZEEK

£y Al

Cathay International Biotech Company

Limited (“CIB")

Cathay International Holdings Limited

("CIH")

Cathay International Enterprises Limited

("CIE")

Wu Zhen Tao

=
Cheng Hoo

Loyal Peace Enterprises Limited

(“Loyal Peace”)

KA R AT

Ever Sail Limited

B N4 4dE Az
EREDS

Beneficial interest

TEEBEES
Interest of a controlled
corporation

LB RS
Interest of a controlled
corporation

LB RS
Interest of a controlled
corporation
LB
Interest of a controlled
corporation

R EEER

Interest of a controlled
corporation

R EE R

Interest of a controlled
corporation

PRETAIPARET
2@ A

Founder of discretionary
trusts and beneficiary
of a trust

R EEER

Interest of a controlled
corporation

BEmEm

Beneficial interest

i

issued ordinary capital of the

shares held Company

209,820,000 50.56%
(45 8)

(Long position)

209,820,000 50.56%
(FE)
(Long position)

209,820,000 50.56%
(a7 72)
(Long position)

209,820,000 50.56%
(F7E)
(Long position)
209,820,000 50.56%
(FE)
(Long position)

209,820,000 50.56%
(a7 =)
(Long position)
209,820,000 50.56%
(a7 =)
(Long position)
209,820,000 50.56%
(37 2)

(Long position)

32,180,000 7.75%
(iFE)
(Long position)
32,180,000 7.75%
(57 R)
(Long position)
32,180,000 7.75%
(57 8)
(Long position)
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Notes:

These shares are held by ClI Pharma China. Cl Pharma China is owned as to
18% by CIC and 82% by Cl Biotech & Pharma China. CIC is in turn owned
as to 100% by Cl Biotech & Pharma China. Cl Biotech & Pharma China is in
turn wholly owned by CIP. CIP is wholly owned by CIB, which in turn is wholly
owned by CIH. Therefore, CIC, Cl Biotech & Pharma China, CIP, CIB, and CIH
are deemed to be interested in these shares.

CIH is held as to approximately 60.99% by CIE. Therefore, CIE is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by ClI Pharma China.

The entire issued share capital of CIE is held by a trust set up by Mr. Wu Zhen
Tao for the benefit of Mr. Wu Zhen Tao and members of his family (“Wu Family
Trust”). Mr. Wu Zhen Tao as founder of the Wu Family Trust is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by CIE.

Ever Sail Limited, acting as trustee of a discretionary trust set up for the
benefit of certain current and former management personnel and employees
of the Group and/or their respective family and/or charity organisation (“the
Management Trust”). The entire issued share capital of Loyal Peace is held by
Ever Sail Limited.

The entire issued share capital of Loyal Peace is held by Ever Sail Limited acting
as the trustee of the Management Trust whom in turn is wholly owned by Mr.
Cheng Hoo. Therefore, Mr. Cheng Hoo is deemed to be interested in the shares
held by Loyal Peace.

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the Directors of the
Company, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors and Chief
Executive’s interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures” above, had registered an interest or short position in

the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required to be

recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Company considers all of
the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Connected Transactions

Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules, the transactions
between the Company and the connected person(s) (as defined under
the Listing Rules) of the Company constitute connected transactions of
the Company. The Company regulates and manages such transactions in
compliance with the Listing Rules.

Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

On 3 September 2013, Liwah Zhiti entered into an entrusted
manufacturing framework agreement (the “Entrusted Manufacturing
Framework Agreement”) with Yangling Dailyhealth and Xian Haotian
(collectively referred as “Suppliers”). According to the Entrusted
Manufacturing Framework Agreement, Liwah Zhiti agreed to buy and
the Suppliers agreed to produce and sell the plant extract products to
Liwah Zhiti. It is contemplated that the plant extract products will be
used by the Group for the production of key ingredients for healthcare
products to be sold in the market by the Group.

On 17 December 2014, Liwah Zhiti and the Suppliers entered into a
renewed entrusted manufacturing framework agreement (the “Renewed
Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement”) for a further term of
three years from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2017 (subject to any
early termination or extension by mutual consent) to renew the supply
arrangements.

On 15 June 2015, Ningbo Lansen entered into the exclusive distribution
agreement with Botai pursuant to which, Botai agrees to sell and appoint
Ningbo Lansen as the exclusive distributor of the Collagen Injectable
Fillers in the PRC. The term of the exclusive distribution agreement
runs from 15 June 2015 to 31 December 2016 (subject to any early
termination or extension which may be agreed by the Parties).

PR B BT R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 3 9
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Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement and
Renewed Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement

Date
3 September 2013 (Renewed on 17 December 2014)

Parties
(@  Liwah Zhiti, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company;

(b)  Yangling Dailyhealth (formerly known as Yangling Haotian), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH, a controlling shareholder
of the Company; and

(¢ Xian Haotian, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH, a
controlling shareholder of the Company.

Transaction Nature

Pursuant to the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement and the
Renewed Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement, Liwah Zhiti
may, during the Term (as defined below), acquire from the Suppliers, the
plant extract products on an order-by-order basis. There is no minimum
purchase amount under the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework
Agreement and the Renewed Entrusted Manufacturing Framework
Agreement, and Liwah Zhiti has no obligation to acquire the plant extract
products from the Suppliers nor are the Suppliers required to provide
them to Liwah Zhiti.

Pricing basis

For the plant extract products to be purchased by Liwah Zhiti from the
Suppliers under the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement
and the Renewed Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement, the
selling price per unit of the plant extract products shall be determined
by reference to the prevailing prices of the products in the market on
an order-by-order basis. Liwah Zhiti will follow its existing standard
purchasing procedures with third party suppliers in negotiating and
determining the purchase price with the Suppliers, which will involve
obtaining fee quotations from other independent third party suppliers in
the market and comparing them with those from the Suppliers.
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Report of the Directors

The supply of the Plant Extracts Products by the Suppliers shall be:

(@  on normal commercial terms and upon terms which are not less
favourable to Liwah Zhiti than terms available to Liwah Zhiti from
independent third parties supplying similar plant extract products
specified by Liwah Zhiti; and

(b) at a competitive pricing determined on arm’s length basis by
reference to the prevailing market price of the plant extract
products.

Term

The term of the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement
commenced on 3 September 2013 and expired on 31 December
2014. The Renewed Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement
commenced on 1 January 2015 and will expire on 31 December 2017
(subject to any early termination or extension by mutual consent),
unless terminated by either party by giving the other written notice
of termination at least one month prior to the effective date of such
termination.

Annual Caps

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the approved annual caps and
the actual transaction amounts of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions under the Entrusted Manufacturing Framework Agreement
are set out below:

BHE-_T—AF+T-_A=+—BLEFENFE LR
Annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2015

A E #29,000,0007T
(494,700,000 7T.)
RMB29,000,000

(approximately US$4.7 million)

HE-_ZE-— 5 +-A=tT-HLFENERZSE
Actual transaction amounts for the year ended 31 December 2015
A R #9,680,0007T
(#91,551,000% 7t)

RMB9,680,000
(approximately US$1,551,000)
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The execution of an exclusive distribution agreement

Date
15 June 2015

Parties
(@ Ningbo Lansen, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company; and

(b)  Botai, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH, a controlling
shareholder of the Company.
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Transaction Nature

Pursuant to the exclusive distribution agreement, Ningbo Lansen will act
as the exclusive distributor of Botai in respect of the Collagen Injectable
Fillers during the Term (as defined below) and it may, during the Term,
acquire from Botai, the Collagen Injectable Fillers on an order-by-order
basis.

Pricing Basis

The unit purchase price of the Collagen Injectable Fillers to be purchased
by Ningbo Lansen under the exclusive distribution agreement is agreed
at a fixed price throughout the Term and is arrived at after arm'’s length
negotiation between the Parties. Such unit purchase price is determined
with reference to:

(i)  the prices of two comparable collagen injectable fillers products in
the PRC market;

(i) the product feature and competitive advantage of the Collagen
Injectable Fillers; and

(i) the procurement benefits given by Botai to Ningbo Lansen in
promoting and marketing the Collagen Injectable Fillers during its
product launch cycle.

Further, to ensure that the unit purchase price of the Collagen Injectable
Fillers is no less favourable than those comparable products available
from independent third parties, the marketing department of Ningbo
Lansen has followed its standard market research procedures by
conducting the relevant research on factors, such as the market demand
within the non-surgical cosmetic market and the trend of the sales
volume of comparable products. It has also taken reference of the prices
and specifications of comparable collagen injectable fillers products from
other independent third parties in the market.

The final unit purchase price of the Collagen Injectable Fillers is mutually
agreed by the Parties after arm'’s length negotiation, but in any event, the
unit purchase price of the Collagen Injectable Fillers is no less favourable
than those of the comparable collagen injectable fillers products in the
market, and the purchase of the Collagen Injectable Fillers by Ningbo
Lansen under the Exclusive Distribution Agreement is on terms which are
no less favourable to Ningbo Lansen than those under a typical exclusive
distribution agreement of similar products.
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Term

The term of the exclusive distribution agreement commenced on 15 June
2015 and will expire on 31 December 2016 (subject to any extension
which may be agreed by the Parties), unless terminated by either Party
giving the other written notice of termination.

Annual Caps

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the approved annual caps and
the actual transaction amounts of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions under the Exclusive Distribution Agreement are set out
below:

HE_Z-—AF+T_A=+—HIEFENFE LR
Annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2015

A R #18,200,0007C
(#92,930,000% 1)
RMB18,200,000

(approximately US$2.93 million)

BE_Z—L1F+_A=1T-BLFENERXFEH
Actual transaction amounts for the year ended 31 December 2015
A R #2,356,0007T
(#9378,000% 7T)

RMB2,356,000
(approximately US$0.38 million)

RIEETRAUFEI14A38G - EFSCEFAL
AREMEAEE 2 HERERSETET
BRBEZRF ZBOMERAEESERZE
BFZEZEER - BUFRTEFCEHNT
BRAEXZRZHBMRE  LHEIAZERS
DARRAMN-—REAEEEBRER—RE
EGARRERERDZHHRGRTL - M
ERGRBAFAREYTAEARARRZE
R

ARBZBMERMETSH R NME R L
M ERERS:

() CESEFSHE:

(i) CEREARZERZZEBHHETL: KR

(i) TEBUSEIFELRRE -

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the
auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed-upon procedures
in respect of the continuing connected transactions of the Group. The
auditor has reported the factual findings on these procedures to the
Board. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and the report of the auditor and
have confirmed that the transactions have been entered into by the
Company in the ordinary and usual course of its business on normal
commercial terms, and in accordance with the terms of the agreement
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has issued a letter to the Board confirming
that the above continuing connected transactions:

(i)  have received the approval of the Board;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing the transactions; and

(i) did not exceed the respective annual caps.
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Save as disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 2015, the
related party transactions disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements
either did not constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, or only constituted
fully exempted connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions by virtue of the de minimis exemption under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has compiled with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the employees of the Group are determined
with reference to individual performance, professional qualifications,
experience in the industry and relevant market trends.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
require the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of
this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float as
required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

Five-Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 5 to 6.

Auditor
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company
to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

Stephen Burnau Hunt
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2016
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company and the Board are devoted to achieving and maintaining
the highest standards of corporate governance as the Board believes that
effective corporate governance practices are fundamental to enhancing
shareholder value and safeguarding interests of the shareholders and
other stakeholders. Accordingly, the Company has adopted sound
corporate governance principles that emphasise a quality Board, effective
internal control, stringent disclosure practices and transparency and
accountability to all stakeholders.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has also complied
with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, except with a deviation from paragraph A.5 of the
Code. Under paragraph A.5 of the Code, the Company should establish
a Nomination Committee with specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with its authority and duties. Currently, the Company had
not established a Nomination Committee and had retained the functions
with the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee has
been delegated the functions of a Nomination Committee since its listing
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in 2010. As such, the Board is
of the view that the members of the Remuneration Committee possess
the necessary experience and knowledge to discharge the functions of
a Nomination Committee. The Board shall review the composition and
operation of the Board Committees from time to time and shall consider
establishing a Nomination Committee if such need arises.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions adopted by the Company.
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The Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the business
operations of the Group. It formulates strategic directions, oversees
the operations and monitors the financial performance of the Group.
Management manages the businesses of the Group, including the
decision making of daily operation within the delegated power and
authority given by the Board. Management is accountable to the Board
for the Company’s overall operation.

The Company’s articles of association set out matters which are
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision.

The Company Secretary or his assistant is responsible for taking minutes
of the Board and Board Committees meetings. Draft minutes and written
resolutions will be circulated to all Board members or Board Committees
members for review and comment within a reasonable period of time.
Final version of the minutes and written resolutions will be provided for
record within a reasonable period of time and the signed copies are kept
in the Company’s minutes book maintained by the Company Secretary
for Directors’ inspection.

As at 31 December 2015, the Board comprised of one executive Director,
five non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises of two executive
Directors, four non-executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. A description of the Directors is set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” section from
pages 25 to 30 and on the Company’s website.
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As at 31 December 2015 and at the date of this report, the Board
comprises of the following members:

BEREZME RE-REBER
AESERENEH REEMWAY
Date of first Date of last
appointment re-election
B Directors to the Board as Director
HITESE: Executive Director:
BIEREE(TTHEF) Mr. Liu Bang Min (Chief Executive Officer) —E-=F1ANMB —=FRA+HhH
9 April 2013 15 May 2013
B E (G HAE Mr. Hou Song (Chief Financial Officer) —E-RNE=ZA=1+A -
30 March 2016 -
FHTES: Non-executive Directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt %t & Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt (Chairman) ZE-ZFWMANA —h%F,NA=A
(F/%) 9 April 2010 3 June 2015
TEMEEGERE) Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman) “E-FFNANH —=FRA+HHE
9 April 2010 15 May 2013
mERE Mr. Tang Jun —E-TFEMANA —=fAA+HAHA
9 April 2010 15 May 2013
S F L (R=F—F Ms. Tao Fang Fang (resigned on —ZE-ZT5—ANH —E-RFA~A=H
ZH=1HEF) 30 March 2016) 8 January 2010 3 June 2015
EMBL Lt (W =-F—/YF Ms. YipPuiling, Rebecca (resigned on ZETNENATH —h%F,A=AR
ZHA=1HEFF) 30 March 2016) 10 September 2009 3 June 2015
AEEL L Ms. Liu Xue Zi —Z-RF=ZA=+H -
30 March 2016 -
BYkHTES: Independent non-executive Directors:
BRac B L. Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael —E-ZFNANH —mERA=-T+NH
9 April 2010 29 May 2014
MR EE Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond “ZT-ZFMANA —mERAZTNA
9 April 2010 29 May 2014
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 64 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher —ET——%ZA+H —mERB=Z+NHE
10 February 2011 29 May 2014

AEBEIHRIEFTENRBEREN B
TEERLEMMRANER  ARANERBHE
RME - NEREZENRBESN - FIUER
ZHBH UEHERRR EFHATH
55 AB2R ANBERMEBEXBEELN
BEHNE - -ARRARUEEBIAEGEEE
EENAE HAHAG KB -

The size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time to time,
taking into account the requirements under the Listing Rules and the
scope and nature of operations of the Company, to ensure that the size
of the Board is adequate to provide a diversity of views and facilitate
effective decision making. The Directors come from diverse background
with varied expertise in finance, human resources and pharmaceutical
business fields. The Company has maintained on the Company’s website
and on the website of the Stock Exchange an updated list of its Directors
identifying their roles and functions.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills
and business experience to the Group. They also bring independent
judgement on issues of strategy, performance and risk through their
contribution to the Board meetings and to the Board Committees’
meetings.

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, there are three
independent non-executive Directors, representing one-third of the
Board. Among the three independent non-executive Directors, one of
them has appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or related
financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to the
Listing Rules. With reference to such confirmations, the Company, to
its best knowledge, considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors fulfill the guidelines on independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and all to be independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the chairman are segregated from the chief executive
officer. The chairman is responsible for managing the Board, steering the
Board to formulate overall strategies and business development plans,
ensuring the receipt of sufficient, complete and reliable information by
each Director and the receipt of reasonable explanations for the issues
raised at the Board meetings. The chief executive officer is responsible
for managing the business of the Company and implementing
policies, business objectives and plans formulated by the Board, and
is accountable to the Board for the Company’s overall operation. The
senior management team is responsible for the day-to-day operations
of the Group under the leadership of the chief executive officer of the
Company.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

The executive Directors Mr. Liu Bang Min and Mr. Hou Song have entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing 9 April 2016 and 30 March 2016 respectively. Each of the
non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years commencing 9 April 2016 except for Mr. Fritz Heinrich
Horlacher and Ms. Liu Xue Zi whose commencement date were 10
February 2014 and 30 March 2016 respectively. All Directors appointed
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by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as addition to the Board
shall retire and be eligible for re-appointment at the first general meeting
after appointment.

At each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Lee Jin Yi, Mr. Liu Bang Min, Mr. Chan Kee Huen,
Michael and Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond will retire by rotation and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election in the forthcoming AGM.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company had not
established a Nomination Committee but had retained the functions
with the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee
members from time to time identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships or
senior management. In considering the nomination of new Directors
or senior management, the Remuneration Committee will take into
account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates as well as the independence
requirement in the case of an independent non-executive Director.
The Remuneration Committee has adopted procedures for nomination
of a new Director or senior management, pursuant to which (1) an
interview will be conducted with the prospective candidates; and (2) the
Remuneration Committee will consider and, if thought fit, make suitable
recommendations to the Board.
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Changes of Directors and Senior Management
The Remuneration and Executive Committees have approved:

the resignation of Mr. Xu Guang as general manager of Ningbo
Liwah, effective 30 March 2015;

the appointment of Mr. Du Du as business development director of
the Group, effective 1 June 2015;

the resignation of Mr. Chen Xiao Yun as vice president of
marketing and business development of the Group, effective 19
June 2015, and the handover procedure on 1 June 2015 when Mr.
Du Du took office;

the resignation of Mr. Zhou Rong as senior vice president of the
Group and general manager of Liwah Zhiti, effective 22 July 2015;

the resignation of Mr. Li Wei Jun as director of business operations
of the Group and executive deputy general manager of Liwah Zhiti,
effective 22 July 2015;

the appointment of Mr. Liu Bang Min as acting general manager of
Liwah Zhiti, effective 22 July 2015;

the appointment of Mr. Tang Taibin as general manager of Ningbo
Lansen, effective 3 August 2015;

the resignation of Mr. Liu Bang Min as general manager of Ningbo
Lansen, effective 3 August 2015;

the resignation of Mr. Mui Chi Hung as company secretary,
chief financial officer and authorised representative, effective 16
September 2015;

the appointment of Mr. Hou Song as chief financial officer,
effective 16 September 2015;

the appointment of Mr. Leung Tsz Chun as company secretary and
authorised representative, effective 16 September 2015;

the resignation of Mr. Zhu Di Han as human resources director of
the Group, effective 30 November 2015;

the appointment of Mr. Zhao Yu as human resources director,
effective 11 December 2015;
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- the appointment of Mr. Hong Zhou as assistant to the CEO of
the Group and general manager of Ningbo Liwah, effective 21
December 2015;

- the resignation of Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca as a non-executive
Director, effective 30 March 2016;

- the resignation of Ms. Tao Fang Fang as a non-executive Director,
effective 30 March 2016;

- the appointment of Ms. Liu Xue Zi as a non-executive Director,
effective 30 March 2016;

- the appointment of Mr. Hou Song as an executive Director,
effective 30 March 2016; and

- the resignation of Mr. Cheng Hua Zhong as a director of operations
of the Group effective 30 March 2016.

Continuing professional development

The Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. The Company from time to time updates and provides training
to the Directors, and organises seminars on the latest development of the
Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and regulations relating to Directors’
duties and responsibilities.

Upon appointment to the Board, the Directors will be provided with a
comprehensive briefing of the Group’s businesses by senior executives.
Continuing education and information are provided to the Directors
regularly to ensure that the Directors are apprised of the latest changes
in the commercial, legal and regulatory environment in which the Group
conducts its businesses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has organised
a training session covering the topic of Director’s duties, the new
Companies Ordinance and the Securities & Futures Commission. All
Directors attended the training. In addition, individual directors also
participated in other courses relating to the roles, functions and duties
of a listed company director or further enhancement of their professional
development by way of attending training courses or via online aids or
reading relevant materials.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties. During the year, the Board formalised the inclusion of
the following corporate governance duties into the terms of reference of
the Board:

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Company’s employees
and the Directors; and

- to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report in its Annual Report.

Board Diversity Policy

On 29 August 2013, the Company adopted the Board diversity policy
in accordance with the requirement set out in the Code. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to
enhance the quality of its performance. With a view to achieving a
sustainable and balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered
from a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, and professional experience. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.
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Board Meetings

The Board is expected to meet regularly at least four times a year.
Between scheduled meetings, the senior management of the Group
provides information to Directors on a regular basis regarding the
activities and development in the businesses of the Group. The
Directors have full access to information on the Group and independent
professional advice at all times whenever deemed necessary by the
Directors.

HE-ZT—AF+-A=+—HILFE  #ZF The Board held five meetings during the year ended 31 December 2015
CROTAXNEHE MSEBMNLHFBRM  with the attendance of each Director as follows:
T

HESERE

BHITERRHY HE=E

No. of meetings

attended/No. of
2= Directors meetings held  Attendance rate
BITES: Executive Director:
[NERGCEGFTHAE) Mr. Liu Bang Min (Chief Executive Officer) 5/5 100%
FHITES: Non-executive Directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt#E 4 (# /&) Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt (Chairman) 5/5 100%
FEBEEEFEE) Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman) 5/5 100%
ZERLE Mr. Tang Jun 5/5 100%
bR o5 5 2+ Ms. Tao Fang Fang 5/5 100%
MBIt Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca 5/5 100%
BYFHITES: Independent non-executive Directors:
PR ECIE o A& Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 5/5 100%
BERR S A& Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 5/5 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 9t 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 5/5 100%
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FTHERAEARDNES  SAMBBRZ
xﬂ%&m Hﬁ%§$$%WﬁA£EA
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With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and an
agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three days prior to
the meeting. For other meetings, Directors are given as much notice
as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances. Except for those
circumstances permitted by the articles of association of the Company,
a Director who has a material interest in any contract, transaction,
arrangement or any other kind of proposal put forward to the Board for
consideration, will abstain from voting on the relevant resolution and
such Director is not counted as quorum.
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The Board has devised its specific written terms of reference setting
out its duties, responsibilities, powers and functions which include the
following:

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

- to take responsibility for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
prevailing accounting standards and laws, approving the financial
statements and appointing and liaising with the Group’s external
auditors;

- to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report in its Annual Report;

- to liaise with all regulatory authorities and organisations on all
matters relating to the Group, and monitor changes in their policies
relating to and affecting the Group; and

- to ensure accountability towards and sufficient communication
with the Group's shareholders.

During the year, a meeting of the Chairman and the non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) without the
presence of the executive director and senior management was held to
discuss the performance of the executive director.

The Board also discussed the policy for the corporate governance of the
Company and duties performed by the Board and the Board Committees
(see below).
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Board Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Executive Committee. Please see below for the
composition and responsibilities of the committees. Each committee shall
provide their recommendations to the Board based on their respective
terms of reference. The decisions of the Board on such recommendations
shall be final, unless otherwise stated in the terms of reference of these
committees.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of three independent
non-executive Directors and two non-executive Directors. Mr. Chan
Kee Huen, Michael, an independent non-executive Director, currently
serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is
expected to meet regularly at least three times per year.

The Board has established the Audit Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated by the Board. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The major duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee include the
following:

- to oversee the relationship with the external auditor, including:

o to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor and address any questions of resignation or dismissal
of such auditor;

o to review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards; and

o to develop and implement policy on the engagement of the
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

- to review and monitor the integrity of the Group’s financial
statements, annual reports and half-year reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained therein; and

- to review the effectiveness of the financial reporting, risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.
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HE-_Z—hFT-_A=+—RHLFE" %T? The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
ZEGRTTZAGE  MEKNENEES) December 2015 with the attendance of each member as follows:
i
HESERE
BHITERRH HE=E

No. of meetings

attended/No. of
EREEEREHS Name of Audit Committee members meetings held  Attendance rate
BRACIE LA (F ) Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael (Chairman) 3/3 100%
FEBRLEE Mr. Lee Jin Yi 3/3 100%
E TSR g Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca 3/3 100%
BORR e & Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 3/3 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher %t 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 3/3 100%
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee had:

- reviewed with management and external auditor on the interim
results and annual results and related announcements including
the related disclosures, integrity of financial reporting and the
accounting policies adopted by the Group prior to submission to
the Board for approval;

- discussed with management on significant judgements affecting
the Group's consolidated financial statements;

- reviewed the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor and recommended the Board on the appointment
of the external auditor;

- reviewed and discussed the internal control reports including
the status of implementing recommendations from the previous
reports; and

- reviewed and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's internal control and risk management.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company consists of three
independent non-executive Directors and two non-executive Directors.
Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond, an independent non-executive Director,
currently serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee is expected to meet regularly at least once per
year.
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The Board has established the Remuneration Committee with specific
written terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities and
authorities delegated by the Board. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The major duties and responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee are:

- to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy and
placing such recommendations before the Board concerning the
total remuneration and/or benefits granted to the Directors and
senior management from time to time;

- to assess the performance of executive Directors and senior
management;

- to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

- to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitution of the Company or imposed by the Listing Rules or any
applicable law;

- to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

- to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors and senior
management;

- to make recommendations to the Board on the nomination,
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and senior
management; and

- to review the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
and professional experience) of the Board at least annually; and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
implement the Company’ s corporate strategy.
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HE-ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE &8  The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year ended
ZESRTTMASE  MEKENHEBN 31 December 2015 with the attendance of each member as follows:
i
HESERE
BTEBRE g %
No. of meetings
Name of Remuneration attended/No. of
FMEEamERR Committee members meetings held  Attendance rate
BR PR S A (£ ) Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond (Chairman) 2/2 100%
Stephen Burnau Hunt 5t 4 Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt 2/2 100%
FEBRLEE Mr. Lee Jin Yi 2/2 100%
PR ECIE A& Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 2/2 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher %t 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 2/2 100%
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Remuneration
Committee:

- assessed the performance of the executive Director and the senior
management;

- pursuant to provision B.1.2 (c)(ii) of the Code, reviewed the
remuneration structure/ package of the Directors and the senior
management, and made recommendation to the Board on their
remuneration;

- determined policy for the nomination of Directors,
- discussed the implementation of the Board diversity policy; and
- made recommendation to the Board on the proposed re-election

of the retiring Directors at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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HE-Z—AF+-_A=+—HIEFEEZZEH The following table shows the breakdown of Directors’ remuneration for

THMAWT the year ended 31 December 2015:
Hitn 5 B
Other emoluments
F&2EW RIREAR
ik ENEF R E @
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  benefit plans
Fees inkind contributions Total
TEx TER Fxr TER
uss$'000 Uss$'000 Us$'000 Uss$'000
HITES: Executive Director:
ER Liu Bang Min - 298 6 304
FRTESF: Non-executive Directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 - - 39
*ER Lee Jin Yi - - - -
BE Tang Jun - - - -
b Tao Fang Fang - - - -
(RZZ—-RE=F=1H&1) (resigned on 30 March 2016)
¥mx Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca - - - -
(RZZ-RE=F=1HFT) (resigned on 30 March 2016)
BUERTES: Independent non-executive Directors:
BRLE Chan Kee Huen, Michael 35 - - 35
HB¥ Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 35 - - 35
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 32 - - 32
141 298 6 445

AT —RAFT+_A=+—HIEFESHE  The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band

BABHKERARE DT

for the year ended 31 December 2015:

—E-ffF
2015
AH

No of individuals

= %129,0003 7T
129,0013€ JT £193,500% 7T
193,501 JT £258,0003% T

Nil-US$129,000 12
US$129,001-US$193,500 -
US$193,501-US$258,000 -
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee of the Company consists of one executive
Director and three non-executive Directors. Mr. Lee Jin Yi, a non-
executive Director, currently serves as the chairman of the Executive
Committee.

The Board has established the Executive Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated by the Board. The major duties and responsibilities of the
Executive Committee include reviewing the financials and financial-
related matters, assisting in developing annual and medium- to long-
term corporate strategies, reviewing and approving new business
development plans, and reviewing and approving research and
development projects.

NITEZESKEBFTBARTZE KB TH  Executive Committee members normally meet every month to keep
AN S lE‘%ﬁH’]E% BERAMELERKIR - LAKE  abreast of the latest activities and performance of the Group and to
RIBREBEETESTEAMFILAAME  monitor and ensure that management carries out the directions and
RS o strategies set by the Board.
HE2-_ZT—AF+-_A=+—HILFE » 11T The Executive Committee held nine meetings during the year ended
ZEERTTLAEH  MSKEMITFEENR 31 December 2015 with the attendance of each member as follows:
PUNNE
HESBEXE
BTEBRE i E =
No. of meetings
Name of Executive attended/No. of
HITZEERERS Committee members meetings held  Attendance rate
FEBEEFERE) Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Chairman) 9/9 100%
BERLE Mr. Liu Bang Min 9/9 100%
bR o5 5 =+ Ms. Tao Fang Fang 9/9 100%
HEME L Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca 9/9 100%
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Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and accounting standards. The Directors also acknowledge
their responsibilities to ensure that the financial statements for the Group
are published in a timely manner.

BDO Limited acknowledges its reporting responsibilities in the auditor’s
report on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

The Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
67 to 68 in this report.

Management has provided to all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group's performance and position in detail.

Auditor’s Remuneration
During the year, BDO Limited was appointed as the Group's auditor until
the conclusion of next AGM.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the fees paid/payable to BDO
Limited in respect of audit and non-audit services were as follows:

et ERE A

PR 7% 1% & Services rendered Fee paid/payable
FEn

Us$'000

% B R 5 Audit services 158
FZERD Non-audit services 34

HEBREIEEREHBEIINTHE
B e E At B X AR 75 -

DREWE
RAMERTAREEEHESTENELHE
BERER HREFTANENABIERB K
RREEFTTHRNIERF -

The non-audit services mainly consisted of interim review and other
professional services in relation to the connected transactions.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, Mr. Leung Tsz Chun, plays an important role
in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within the
Board and that board policy and procedures are followed.
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All Directors may access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance and
regulatory matters and should also facilitate induction and professional
development of Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company Secretary has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Internal Control and Risk Assessment

The Board is responsible for the internal control system of the Group
and has the responsibility for reviewing its effectiveness including
financial, operational and compliance controls. The Board is committed
to implementing an effective and sound internal control system to
safeguard the interest of shareholders and the Group's assets.

To further strengthen the internal control of the Group, an internal
control department was established. Several department heads of the
Company met with the internal control department regularly to ensure
a sound internal control system is in place and maintained. To enhance
the knowledge of relevant staff of the Group, training will be provided
to them in the matter of relevant rules and applicable laws as and when
appropriate.

During the year, the internal control department has performed internal
control reviews covering certain key control areas including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.
The Company considered that the internal control department is
sufficient at this moment and will consider establishing an internal audit
function in the future if necessary.

Also, management has analysed the control environment and risk
assessment, assessed the various controls implemented and agreed
with the Board on the scope of review over the system of internal
controls. The approach of the review includes discussing with relevant
management and staff members, reviewing relevant documentation of
the internal control system and evaluating findings on any deficiencies
in the design of the internal controls and developing recommendations
for improvement, where appropriate. On the other hand, the Board
continues to review, from time to time, the impact of development of
business and operations on the system of internal control to evaluate the
need for setting up an internal audit function for the Group.
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Management has reported the results of the reviews to the Audit
Committee for its evaluation on the effectiveness of the system.
Meetings were held by the Audit Committee to discuss the findings
and the results of the reviews which were endorsed for reporting to the
Board. The Board is satisfied that, based on the information supplied,
coupled with its own observations and with the assistance of the Audit
Committee, the present internal controls and risk management processes
are satisfactory for the nature and size of the Group’s operations and
business. The Board will continue to ensure that appropriate review of
the systems and procedures is being carried out by management from
time to time to maintain a high standard of internal control and will make
appropriate changes to the internal control system, if necessary.

Inside information
With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company

- is aware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and the SFO and
the overriding principle that information which is expected to be
inside information should be announced once it is the subject of a
decision;

- has set up an inside information control team to supervise inside
information matters and report to the Board in a timely manner;

- has implemented its own policy and reporting system based
on Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission; and

- has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group’s affairs.

Directors’ and officers’ liability

The Company has renewed Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities insurance
for all the Directors and senior management of the Company for the year
2015/2016. The insurance covers them against costs, charges, expenses
and liabilities incurred arising out of corporate activities.
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Communications with Shareholders

The Directors recognise the importance of long-term support from
the shareholders of the Company. The Board highly respects the
shareholders’ rights to express their views and appreciates their
suggestions to the Company.

Our investor relations activities include:

- regular meetings (one-to-one/group meetings, roadshows or site
visits) with analysts and investors;

- conferences with analysts and the press to announce the
Company’s results;

- the holding of an AGM which provides an opportunity for the
shareholders to communicate directly with the Board,;

- the publication of announcements, interim reports, annual reports
and/or circulars on a timely basis via the Company’s and the Stock
Exchange’s websites; and

- the availability of the latest information of the Group on the
Company's website.

There is no change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Shareholder’s Rights
The AGM provides opportunities for the shareholders to meet and raise
questions to our Directors, management and the external auditor.

The Company will arrange for the Chairman of the Board and the
respective chairman of each of the Board Committees to attend the AGM
to exchange views with shareholders and answer their questions.

Any shareholder is encouraged and entitled to attend the AGM, provided
that their shares have been recorded in the register of members of the
Company. The notice of AGM will be given to all shareholders at least
20 clear business days or 21 clear days (whichever is longer) before the
meeting.

The last annual general meeting of the Company was the 2015 annual
general meeting (“2015 AGM”), held on 3 June 2015 at Admiralty
Conference Centre (ACC), 1804A, 18/F, Tower 1, Admiralty Centre, 18
Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong. All Directors and the external
auditor of the Company, BDO Limited, attended the 2015 AGM.
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At the 2015 AGM, separate resolutions including declaration of final
dividend, the re-election of Directors, the re-appointment of auditor,
the authorisation to grant the general mandate to issue and repurchase
of shares were proposed. The Company adopted poll voting for all
resolutions.

All resolutions put to shareholders at the 2015 AGM were passed. The
Company’s Hong Kong Share Registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
was appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast
at that meeting. The results of the voting by poll were declared at the
meeting and published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The way by which shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM")

The Directors, notwithstanding anything in the Company’s articles of
association shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding at the date of
the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the paid-
up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene an EGM.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Company Secretary
at the Company’s principal place of business at Suites 1203—4, 12/F, Li
Po Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong, and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in the
agenda for the EGM.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of two months from the
said date.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with contact information of the
requisitionists and deposited at the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business at Suites 1203—4, 12/F, Li Po Chun Chambers,
189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.
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The procedures for making proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings
To put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM, the shareholders should
submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed contact
information to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po Chun Chambers, 189 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The request will be verified with the
Company'’s Share Registrars and upon their confirmation that the request
is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all shareholders for consideration of the
proposal raised by the shareholders concerned at an AGM or EGM varies
according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

. At least 14 days’ notice (the notice period must include 10 business
days) in writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution of
the Company in an EGM.

° At least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include 20 business
days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a special resolution of
the Company in an EGM or any resolution of the Company in an
AGM.

Investor Relations Contacts

The Company values feedbacks from shareholders, investors and the
public. Enquiries and proposals are welcome and can be put to the
Company via the following means:

Hong Kong
Please contact our Company Secretary at:

By phone : (852) 2828 9285

By post . Suite 1203—4, 12/F,, Li Po Chun Chambers,
189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

By e-mail . ir@lansen.com.cn

The PRC

Please contact our Investor Relations Department at:

By phone . (86) 755 2532 3058

By post : Room 1804, Tower D, KK100, 139 Hongbao Road,
Luohu District, Shenzhen, PRC (Post code 518001)

By e-mail . ir@lansen.com.cn

The latest investor relations information is available on the Company’s
website at www.lansen.com.cn.
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To the shareholders of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lansen
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 69 to 152, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial

statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and
of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Tsui Fong
Practising Certificate Number: P05440

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE=-ZT—AF+= A=+ —H 1L/ For the year ended 31 December 2015

—E-afF —T-MEF
2015 2014
B 5 FEx FET
Notes Us$'000 Us$'000
A Revenue 6 93,349 116,817
35 & A AR Cost of sales (45,386) (54,346)
E F Gross profit 47,963 62,471
H Ath e A Other income 6 5,265 3,609
HEMDHAX Selling and distribution expenses (27,176) (33,497)
THRAX Administrative expenses (12,228) (13,661)
wEERF Profit from operations 13,824 18,922
KK B 18 Loss from flood 19 4,272) —
IRBEEMMITHEIZX  Administrative penalty and other related
& E A 18R & A ginkgo product expenses 9 (3,953) —
B 7% B 2R Finance costs 8 (3,430) (3,010)
FEAL Bt & AR ZBRFi1&  Share of post-tax profit of an associate
i Al 2,162 2,156
R BT 18 %4 Al % Fl Profit before income tax 9 4,331 18,068
T8 % 5 2 Income tax expense 1 (2,260) (4,088)
FEEF Profit for the year 2,071 13,980
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HE-T—AF+=H=1—HI1:-FE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

—E-HF —T-MEF
2015 2014
Ff 3% FTEx FET
Notes US$’000 Us$'000
Hit2mHE K = Other comprehensive income
HZAJgEER 7 FHE  Item that may be reclassified subsequently
Bz ZHE : to profit or loss:
BMEBINETEE L ZE Exchange differences arising on translation
HER of foreign operations (8,712) (1,199)
FEHEMEEMK = Other comprehensive income for
(FBrFEE) the year, net of tax (8,712) (1,199)
FEXEHKEAE Total comprehensive income for
the year (6,641) 12,781
AATEEAEBER Profit attributable to owners of
the Company 2,071 13,980
AAEHEBAEMN Total comprehensive income
2HER LR attributable to owners of
the Company (6,641) 12,781
BEREF —EAXKX#E Earnings per share — basic and diluted 13 0.5 cents E 1l 3.4 cents Il
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R=F—A%F+=H=+—H Asat 31 December 2015
—E-afF —T-MEF
2015 2014
B 2 FEx FET
Notes Us$'000 Us$'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
ME - BERZE Property, plant and equipment 14 33,606 34,819
TE + Mo #E & FRIE Prepaid land lease payment 15 2,158 2,354
EEEE Intangible assets 16 25,239 23,299
5k Goodwill 17 6,824 6,824
REtERF) 2= Interest in an associate 18 33,690 35,113
101,517 102,409
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 19 17,462 16,880
B & HE MW FKT Trade and other receivables 20 56,220 70,036
TE + Ho #E & 5K IE Prepaid land lease payment 15 55 59
A Ug [ 75 18 Tax recoverable 224 —
BEEBRITFE K Pledged bank deposits 21 23,832 27,072
RekReEED Cash and cash equivalents 21 18,976 15,819
116,769 129,866
BEE Total assets 218,286 232,275
EzREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EEXRFE Capital and reserves
AABRBEEAEMLESR Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
[N Share capital 22 4,150 4,150
1% 0 % 8 Share premium 23 24,302 30,819
SN 5% 18 Foreign exchange reserve 23 3,549 12,261
VA T Statutory reserve 23 8,344 7,874
= 8 % A Retained profits 61,102 59,501
B Total equity 101,447 114,605
BRAEBE B4R R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 71
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R=ZF—RF+=H=1—H Asat 31 December 2015

—E-RF —E—mF
2015 2014
B 5% FEx FET
Notes US$'000 Us$'000

ERBEE Non-current liabilities
EEN Borrowings 24 1,090 —
RERIBEAE Deferred tax liabilities 25 1,548 993
2,638 993

REBAEE Current liabilities

B Borrowings 24 88,881 84,811
MEHIEBE Current tax liabilities 1,473 1,776
B 5 & B b & 5B Trade and other payables 26 22,677 28,974
HEHhemaE Other financial liabilities 27 1,170 1,116
114,201 116,677
HmaEs Total liabilities 116,839 117,670
HBEZREE Total equity and liabilities 218,286 232,275
RBEERE Net current assets 2,568 13,189
BWEERABERS Total assets less current liabilities 104,085 115,598

FEORIEMBMEREE R -_ZE—~E=H The financial statements on pages 69 to 152 were approved and
=tREEESH A& REERZ - SWHLARA  authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2016 and are

THREEE: signed on its behalf by:
BEE EE
Director Director
2ER EN
LIU Bang Min Hou Song
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE=-ZT—AF+= A=+ —H 1L/ For the year ended 31 December 2015

BA ROBEE HPERE EERE RKREER 2 AES

Foreign
Share Share  exchange  Statutory  Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits equity

TxL TX=x TET T TET TX=n
US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$'000

BEEZE-_Z-ME+=A Year ended 31 December 2014

=t—-ALEE
RZZ—WF—F—HZ#&# Balance at 1 January 2014 4,150 39,645 13,460 6,650 46,745 110,650
& S (B 5E12) Dividends (note 12) = (8,826) = = — (8,826)
BERNETRS Transactions with owners = (8,826) — — — (8,826)
F & s Al Profit for the year = = = = 13,980 13,980
Hih 2 HE K& Other comprehensive income
REBINEBEEZ Exchange difference arising on

MEHZ5 translation of foreign operations = — (1,199) — — (1,199)
FEZEKEHEE Total comprehensive income for

the year — — (1,199) — 13,980 12,781

ERZEAERE Appropriations to statutory reserve = — — 1,224 (1,224) —

N-Z—&E+=-F=+—H Balance at 31 December 2014

B 4,150 30,819 12,261 7,874 59,501 114,605
HZ-Z-1%¥+=A Year ended 31 December 2015

=t+-BLEEE
RZZT—HFE—A—Hz##% Balance at 1 January 2015 4,150 30,819 12,261 7,874 59,501 114,605
B 5 (Ff 3E12) Dividends (note 12) = (6,517) = = = (6,517)
HEBAEARS Transactions with owners = (6,517) — — — (6,517)
F & a Al Profit for the year = = = = 2,071 2,071
H fth 2 T M £ Other comprehensive income
REBINEBEEZ Exchange difference arising on

EHE translation of foreign operations = — (8,712) — — (8,712)
FEAHEKEHEE Total comprehensive income for

the year = = (8,712) = 2,071 (6,641)

B E A ERE Appropriations to statutory reserve = = = 470 (470) —

R-ZZE—FHF+-F=+—H Balance at 31 December 2015
% 4,150 24,302 3,549 8,344 61,102 101,447
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Consohdated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-T—AF+=H=1—HI1:-FE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015
—E-HEF —PHE
2015 2014
FTEx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
REREEBZ2RERE Cash flows from operating activities
b BT 15 %1 B i A1 Profit before income tax 4,331 18,068
T Adjustments for:
B HE R B 75 B AR Finance costs recognised 3,430 3,010
B U A Interest income (1,157) (452)
JEAL B R R 2 BR B A& i B Share of post-tax profit of an associate (2,162) (2,156)
H 5 e WK TE B E B E Provision for impairment of trade receivables 13 10
H b 8 W 5k I8 R B B Provision for impairment of other receivables — 15
M BERZHETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 2,771 2,624
T8 £ 4 TH & 508 8 5H Amortisation of prepaid land lease payment 63 64
HEWE BERZEEBR Losses on disposals of property, plant
and equipment 62 7
HERETEE 2 W= Gain on disposals of intangible assets — (34)
BT & BE M Write off of intangible assets 9 729
7 & 38 Write off of inventories 458 —
KK R Loss from flood 4,272 —
mEEEH Amortisation of intangible assets 620 630
PRETF BB EREE Provision for impairment of obsolete
inventories 31 247
EEZES BRI 2 KE A Operating profit before working
capital changes 12,741 22,762
FEEm Increase in inventories (6,380) (96)
B 5K H W RIER D Decrease/(Increase) in trade and
(32 hn) other receivables 10,406 (13,757)
B RHEMEWRIBECHD),  (Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables
S| (4,824) 8,514
EEELEZHE Cash generated from operations 11,943 17,423
ENHE Interest paid (3.376) (2,972)
BEfFTEH Income tax paid (2,065) (2,758)
ST ELE R FHE Net cash generated from operating activities 6,502 11,693
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE=-ZT—AF+= A=+ —H 1L/ For the year ended 31 December 2015
—E-fHE —ma
2015 2014
FTEx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
RERETBH2EERE Cash flows from investing activities
BRI ERR D, (3B IN)  Decrease/(Increase) in pledged bank deposits 1,746 (12,689)
B 1 E b WSRO A Decrease in pledged other receivables — 659
BEWME BERKZE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (3,685) (2,758)
HEREEEMS KA Proceeds from disposals of intangible assets — 402
ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬂ/ﬁfz Purchase of intangible assets (3,501) (10,762)
HEME  BMERREFSFIA Proceeds from disposals of property, plant
and equipment 25 6
U B B 2 A B IR B, Dividend received from an associate 1,517 836
2 HF A Interest received 811 452
RETETHHE 2 FEH Net cash used in investing activities (3,087) (23,854)
REMETBZ2RERE Cash flows from financing activities
BT8R IE Proceeds from borrowings 94,781 87,829
EEEERE Repayment of borrowings (87.734) (61,975)
EfRRE Dividends paid (6,517) (8,826)
BETEELEZH S FE Net cash generated from financing activities 530 17,028
Re RBEESFEY 2 FE N Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,945 4,867
E?ﬂfﬁ/ﬂ?&fﬁ ZEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 15,819 11,029
EXEF 8 Effects of exchange rate changes (788) (77)
FRBEERASZEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18,976 15,819
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Corporate Information

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 10 September 2009 and its shares have been listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 7 May 2010. The Company’s registered
office is located at Clifton House, 75 Fort Street P. O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, the Cayman lIslands. The Company’s
principal place of business is located at Suites 1203—4, 12/F, Li Po
Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries (together with
the Company referred to as the “Group”) are manufacturing and
trading of pharmaceutical products. The principal activities of the
Group are carried out in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
and are set out in note 29. There were no significant changes in the
Group'’s operations during the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Cathay International Holdings
Limited (“CIH"), a company incorporated in Bermuda and whose
shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange. The directors
consider the ultimate holding company to be CIH.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial

Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as “IFRSs”)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB")
and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for certain financial liabilities that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.
The measurement bases are fully described in the accounting
policies set out below. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in United States Dollars (“US$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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3. Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs

341

3.2

Adoption of new or revised IFRSs — effective 1
January 2015

IFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2010—

2012 Cycle

IFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2011-

2013 Cycle

The adoption of these amendments has no material impact
on the Group'’s financial statements.

New or revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective

The following new or revised IFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group's financial statements, have been issued, but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.

IFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2012—

2014 Cycle!

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative'

Amendments to IAS 7 Disclosure Initiative?

Amendments to IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses?

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation'

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements'

Financial Instruments?

Amendments to IAS 16
and IAS 38

Amendments to IAS 27

IFRS 9 (2014)

Amendments to IFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets

and IAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
IFRS 16 Leases?
B @i AR AR Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 77
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3.

Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.2 New or revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective (Continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

# The effective date of the amendment is postponed, early adoption
is permitted

IFRS 9 (2014), Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 (2014) introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows (the business model test) and that have contractual
terms that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet the
contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI")
if the objective of the entity’s business model is both to hold
and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the financial
assets. Entities may make an irrevocable election at initial
recognition to measure equity instruments that are not held
for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments
are measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

IFRS 9 (2014) includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in IAS 39 and new
general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities to
better reflect their risk management activities in financial
statements.
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3. BAFHITRLETEABRTERE 3. Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs (Continued)
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3.2 New or revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not
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yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 9 (2014), Financial Instruments (Continued)

IFRS 9 (2014) carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities from
IAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL,
where the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, IFRS 9 (2014) retains
the requirements in IAS 39 for derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities.

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including /AS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective. The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition: 1) identify the contract(s) with a customer;
2) identify the performance obligations in the contract; 3)
determine the transaction price; 4) allocate the transaction
price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
5) recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.
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Adoption of New or Revised IFRSs (Continued)

New or revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with
specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by IFRS 15.

IFRS 16, Leases

IFRS 16 eliminates the classification by a lessee of leases as
either operating or finance. Instead all leases are treated
in a similar way to finance leases in accordance with IAS
17. Under IFRS 16, leases are recorded on the statement of
financial position by recognising a liability for the present
value of its obligation to make future lease payments with
an asset (comprised of the amount of the lease liability plus
certain other amounts) either being disclosed separately
in the statement of financial position (within right-of-use
assets) or together with property, plant and equipment. The
most significant effect of the new requirements will be an
increase in recognised lease assets and financial liabilities.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these new or revised IFRSs and the
directors are not yet in a position to quantify the effects on
the Group'’s financial statements.

Amendments to the Listing Rules relating to the
disclosure of the financial information in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements

The Group has adopted the amendments to the Listing
Rules issued by the Stock Exchange relating to the disclosure
of financial information with reference to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) during the current financial
year. The main impact to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements is on the presentation and disclosure of certain
information in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and the
ability to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interest in a
subsidiary is carried at cost less any impairment losses. The result
of the subsidiary is accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable at the reporting date. All
dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company'’s profit or loss.

BRAEBE B4R R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 8 1
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit (“CGU") is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, by comparing its carrying amount
with its recoverable amount, and whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to
the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount to each asset in the unit. However, the loss allocated to
each asset will not reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount to
below its fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value-
in-use (if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed
in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an
associate is described in policy for associate.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, an interest in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group'’s interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An interest in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the interest in an associate, any excess
of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of IAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s interest in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with /AS 36 Impairment of Assets
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of
value-in-use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss
is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from the
date when the investment ceases to be an associate, or when
the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified as held for sale.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate and
the retained interest is a financial asset, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance
with IAS 39. The difference between the carrying amount of the
associate at the date the equity method was discontinued, and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets
or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group (such
as a sale or contribution of assets), profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate that are not related to the Group.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under construction
as described below) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment (other
than properties under construction) less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, estimated residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis. The major categories of property, plant and
equipment are depreciated as follows:

Building and plant 20-50 years
Machineries 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-12 years
Furniture and equipment 5-15 years
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Costs include professional fees, direct costs of construction and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. Capitalisation of these
costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to
the appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets for
their intended use are completed. No depreciation is provided for
in respect of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if
its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the net sales proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Prepaid land lease payment
Prepaid land lease payment represent up-front payments to acquire
long term interest in the usage of land. These payments are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on straight-line method over the lease
terms between 48 to 50 years.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development costs

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are available
for use. The amortisation expense is recognised in profit or loss and
included in administrative expenses.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any subsequent impairment accumulated losses.

Research and development costs

An intangible asset arising from development expenditure on an
individual project is recognised provided they meet the following
recognition requirements:

o demonstration of technical feasibility of completing the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

o there is intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

o the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated;

o the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

. sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

o the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can be
reliably measured.

Development expenditure which does not meet the above criteria

and expenditure on the research phase of internal projects are
recognised in profit or loss when incurred.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development costs (Continued)

Research and development costs (Continued)

Capitalised development costs that have a finite useful life are
amortised on straight-line method over their estimated useful lives,
when the products are available for use. The amortisation expense
is recognised in profit or loss and included in administrative
expenses. Capitalised development costs with indefinite useful
lives are tested for impairment annually.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually by
comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets that have a finite useful
life to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGUs, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows expected to be derived from the CGU are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risk specific to the CGU.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. If an asset’s carrying amount is decreased
as a result of a revaluation, the decrease shall be recognised in
profit or loss. However, the decrease shall be recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent of any credit balance existing
in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The decrease
recognised in other comprehensive income reduces the amount
accumulated in the equity under the heading of revaluation
reserve.

Where an impairment loss of tangible and intangible assets (other
than goodwill) subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but to the extent that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of any depreciation or amortisation,
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. All reversals are recognised in the profit or loss immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case any reversal of impairment should be treated as a revaluation
and therefore credited to other comprehensive income. However,
to the extent that an impairment on the revalued asset was
previously recognised as an expense in the income statement, a
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised as income in the
profit or loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. These (including trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents) are carried at amortised
cost using effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or

o a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group'’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of six months to one year, and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade and other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities are classified as either “financial liabilities at
amortised cost” or “financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss”.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are obligations to pay cash or other financial
assets including borrowings, trade and other payables are
recognised when the Group becomes party to the contractual
obligations of the instrument and are initially recorded at fair value,
net of issue costs. They are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit
or loss when the financial liability is either held for trading or
is designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria are met: (i)
the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities
or recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis; (ii)
the liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management strategy; or (iii)
the financial liability contains an embedded derivative that would
need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its

liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct
labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less all estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at banks and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term highly liquid
investment with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business and the use by others of the Group’s
assets yielding interest, net of discounts. Provided it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be reliably measured, revenue is recognised
as follows:

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which is at the time of delivery and the title
is passed to customer.

Interest income is accrued on time basis on the principal
outstanding at effective interest rate.

Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for tax
purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the assets or liabilities is realised or settled and that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income in which
case the taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or when they relate to items recognised directly in equity in which
case the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the Company/group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it/they operate(s) (the “functional currency”)
are recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions occur.
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at
the rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. US$)
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions took place are
used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at
the rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or
loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the term of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are recognised
in profit or loss on straight-line method over the lease term. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an integrated part of the total
rental expense, over the term of the lease.

Retirement benefit costs
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined
contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit plan
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (“MPF
Scheme”), for all of its employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries or the maximum mandatory
contribution as required by the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
the PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to
the central pension scheme.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions. The
contributions recognised in respect to defined contribution benefit
plans are expenses as they fall due. Liabilities and assets may be
recognised if underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are
included in current liabilities or current assets as they are normally
of a short term nature.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require a
substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Income earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.
Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate. Government
grants relating to the purchase of assets are included in liabilities
as deferred government grants in the consolidated statement of
financial position and are recognised in profit or loss on straight-
line method over the expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross under
“Other income” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable will result in
an outflow of economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Related parties

(@ A person or a close member to that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of the Company’s parent;

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

BiEBREERERAR

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)
(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and for
their review of the performance of those components.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segments
under IFRS 8 are the same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under IFRS, except that:

o share of results of associate accounted for using equity
method

o income tax

o finance costs

o corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating

segment are not included in arriving at the operating results
of the operating segment.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment of trade and other receivables is made based on
assessment of the recoverability of receivables from debtors. The
identification of the impairment requires management judgements
and estimates where the actual outcome or expectation in future
is different from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the carrying value of the receivables and impairment losses/reversal
of impairment losses in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

Useful lives of intangible assets

The management estimates the development costs, which
represented the intellectual property rights generated internally in
pharmaceutical industry and technical know-how with perpetual
royalty-free license with no termination, have indefinite useful lives
as they believe that there is no foreseeable limit on the period of
time over which these intangibles are expected to provide cash
flows and these intellectual property rights can be renewable in a
period of time at minimal cost and the products are continuing in
the market.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(Continued)

Useful lives of intangible assets (Continued)

The estimated useful lives of the exclusive distribution rights
and technical know-how were made by the management
with reference to the legal limits on the use of the assets and
the estimated periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of intangible assets. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations, changed
customer behavior and competitor actions in response to industry
cycles.

Management will increase the amortisation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or will recognise
impairment loss when future cash flows are less than expectation
and fall below the carrying amount of the intangible assets.

Current income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC. Significant
judgement is required in determining the amount of the provision
for taxation and the timing of payment of the related taxations.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises taxes based on estimates of the
likely outcome with reference to current tax laws and practices.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which
such determination is made.

Impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value-in-use of the CGUs to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value-in-use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2015,
the carrying amount of goodwill is US$6,824,000. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 17.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

(Continued)

Impairment of intangible assets

Impairment losses for intangible assets are recognised for the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value-in-use, are determined with reference
to the best information available at the end of the reporting date.
Changing the assumptions selected by the Group’s management in
assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the operating
and growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the impairment test
and as a result affect the Group’s financial position and results
of operations. As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of
intangible assets is US$25,239,000.

Fair value of contingent consideration

The Group determines the fair value of contingent consideration
of purchase of intangible assets based on the forecast of future
performance results of the related pharmaceutical product and
terms of acquisition agreement. The fair value of contingent
consideration will be revised upward or downward where future
performance results are different from previous forecast and as
a result, the change of fair value of contingent consideration will
affect the Group’s financial position and results of operations.
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WA & H AW A Revenue and Other Income
REBRFANKRA (BIREENEERE) An analysis of the Group’s revenue, which is also the Group’s
REMBABDITAT turnover, and other income for the years are as follows:
—F-1% —TMEF
2015 2014
FEx FETT
Us$'000 US$'000
HEEmMNEKA Revenue from sales of goods 93,349 116,817
Hmk A Other income
IR1TH B U A Bank interest income 1,157 452
BT 7 B & Government grants 1,770 2,199
REWA Transition income 2,040 729
EAfh Others 298 229
5,265 3,609

ANEBEEREM T RTREMEIASE
AAKENRBARAZESR R %M o W
B H) 78 B 2 1 P 75 4 fa] R 4 o

R-ZE—ME=A=-+/\B  A&E=EHE
Novartis AG 5 Novartis Pharma AG (%t &
(R ER R ARBEEEROE
FIEHEXAZ -  BARERERA - A&
EEANSERREERENZEEE
mATERTAE  BE#mEERRASE
REIERY  BEETREMEEZE R
Em: WHEBEELETHE - KEWA
EYHAEHERBEENTEAN R
o BEERBENEOERFAZD
PRE_ZE—RHE=ZAR_ZT—RHFT
—AEEINAEER R_T—RHF+=
A=t—BAXEHEHER -

1 04 Annual Report 2015 F 3R

The Group received grants from the local government in the PRC as
recognition of the Group’s performance and development of high-
technology pharmaceutical products. The grants received were not
subject to any conditions.

On 28 March 2014, the Group reached an agreement with
Novartis AG and Novartis Pharma AG (collectively known as
“Novartis”) to acquire the rights and know-how related to
pharmaceutical product. As the Group has not obtained the
required licences to manufacture or import the pharmaceutical
product in the PRC during the transition period, Novartis would
supply the transition services to the Group which include the
supply of the pharmaceutical product for sale carried out by
Novartis in the PRC. Transition income represented the transfer
of profit generated from the sales of pharmaceutical product by
Novartis. The Certificate of Pharmaceutical Product and Imported
Drug License were transferred to the Group in March 2015 and
November 2015 respectively. The transition period is ended as at
31 December 2015.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

HE=-ZT—AF+= A=+ —H 1L/ For the year ended 31 December 2015

FHER 7. Segment Information
RERD @E&n$1ﬁ/\ BRI MABMITE Information reported to the executive directors, being the chief
E-PEE2LEBRREA(EEZLERE operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource
ADERHERTDUARNNEmER allocation and assessment of segment performance based on the
REME o types of goods delivered.
7N £ B AR 5 B B B A R OB 28R Y The Group's reportable and operating segments under IFRS 8 are
BETEMREEBAOT - as follows:
— HRERRE LEREEFE —  Specialty pharmaceuticals: development, production and

FARA B2 K 52 88 B} 4B 13 ) S ) 2 sale of specialty pharmaceuticals mainly used in the field of

rheumatology and dermatology

— EYRDRERREER: AE - £E — Plant extract and healthcare products: development,
K& P ERRY KR IEE M production and sale of Chinese medicine extracts and

healthcare products

— EHEfhZEm —  Other pharmaceuticals
LATF_& REBRATEMREE D EE The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results from
PHFESEMEEANRAREE S continuing operations by reportable and operating segment.
i o
BE-_Z—HF+-A=+—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2015
EYRBRR
EN#ER RO Em Hih g m Ber
Plant extract
Specialty and healthcare Other
pharmaceuticals products pharmaceuticals Total
TER FEx TER FER
US$'000 Us$‘000 Us$'000 US$'000
ATFEHRD IBUKA Reportable segment revenue 60,083 25,529 7,737 93,349

BT2HmoEEF Reportable segment profit/
(B18) (loss) 19,725 3,880 (778) 22,827

BRAEBE B4R R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 O 5
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HE-T—AF+=H=1—HI1:-FE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

7. oER(E) 7. Segment Information (Continued)
HE_Z—NF+_A=T—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2014
EY R E &
BRI ZE o, REEEm B B T
Plant extract
Specialty and healthcare Other
pharmaceuticals products pharmaceuticals Total
FEx FETT FET F=ET
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
BETEHRHD FBIWA Reportable segment revenue 70,730 35,854 10,233 116,817
BETE2HHD HmF Reportable segment profit 21,891 6,475 608 28,974
REEKE D B EENEE RSB m K The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments
EHRNAKEFZHHBBROEROT reconciled to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in the
financial statements as follows:
—E2-1F —ZE-mF
2015 2014
T Fx
US$'000 Us$'000
= = B Profit or loss
AT 2 &b A Reportable segment profit 22,827 28,974
JE A Bk 2 N B Y BR A 4% Vg A Share of post-tax profit of an associate 2,162 2,156
KK B 1E Loss from flood (4,272) —
SR EEE MM ITHE K X M Administrative penalty and other related
fHE & A ginkgo product expenses (3,953) —
H R o B A Other income not allocated 3,225 3,609
Ko X Expenses not allocated (12,228) (13,661)
8 75 B AN Finance costs (3,430) (3,010)
b BT 13 % B Profit before income tax 4,331 18,068
J: NFE2H DLW AEKEINER F BT Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
BHRA - KREELES DRENE (- from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in the
— PO 4E]) o current year (2014 nil).
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DRRITESEREERD L RKRRF
HRZEMNETERE -

BE_T-NO+-_A=+—HILFE 'K
SEWAEFE1%KE MEY R KRR
BERIOBINE-—FF HE_FT—
A+-RA=t—HLEFE  HEE—IHE
BEFMAREEER10%3 A EEUA ©

R-ZE—ME+-"A=+—H A&EH
1% E S BB ARBRABERZEZEF K
HeN-_T—Ht+-_A=+—8 HES
— N EFERE SR IER10% K
LA E »

TS R R BT EE
Notes to the Financial Statements

HE=-ZT—AF+= A=+ —H 1L/ For the year ended 31 December 2015

Segment Information (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4.
Reportable segment profit/ (loss) represents the gross profit/
(loss) and transition income (included in other income) less selling
and distribution expenses by each segment. This is the measure
reported to the executive directors for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, 11% of the Group's
revenue was derived from a single customer in the “Plant extract
and healthcare products” segment. There was no single external
customer contributed 10% or more of the Group's revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

As at 31 December 2014, 21% of the Group's trade receivables
were due from this customer. There was no single external
customer contributed 10% or more of total trade receivables as at
31 December 2015.

BRAEBE B4R R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 07
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HE-T—AF+=H=1—HI1:-FE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

7. oER(E) 7. Segment Information (Continued)
REEBNWAEDET 5 H & - The Group's revenues are divided into the following geographical
areas:

—F-1% —TMEF

2015 2014

FExn TET

Us$'000 US$'000

B (% &) The PRC (domicile) 83,352 108,996

=R Overseas 9,997 7,821

93,349 116,817
EEMMEMNENIERRENTES & The geographical location of customers is based on the location
BB AEE - A G ARHESERES at which the services were provided or the goods delivered. The
M IS BB AT MAEEES Company is an investment holding company incorporated in the
A AT c AEBHNTIELER Cayman Islands where the Group does not have any activities,
TEBBAMRAFE - B - 3 E g E R the Group has the majority of its operations and workforce in the
B R SR YE R B QYR [ 48 4 5 38 | TR E By PRC, and therefore, the PRC is considered as the Group’s country
WEMs HWEEAERNEERR - of domicile for the purpose of the disclosures as required by IFRS 8

“Operating Segments”.

PREEE NEBWMFAIETEEE Almost all of the non-current assets of the Group were located in
A TR N E o the PRC in both years.
R EFTHERNTESEHRD TS No segment assets or segment liabilities is presented as they are
EfNSAEEE I EZNEEBE not regularly provided to the executive directors.
%t o
8. BIHRA 8. Finance Costs
—F-1% —TMEF
2015 2014
FXx T=ET
Uss$'000 Us$'000
RITBEF S Interest on bank borrowings 3,376 2,972
I 35, 15 7 (Bt 5E27) Unwinding of discount on provision
(note 27) 54 38
3,430 3,010
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HE=-ZT—AF+= A=+ —H 1L/ For the year ended 31 December 2015

BR T 18 Bt A& R 9. Profit before income tax
NEEE R BR FT 15 B A& A1) D BR (5t The Group profit before income tax has been arrived at after
A) T3 &IESH charging/(crediting):
—E-5F —F—F
2015 2014
FEn FET
US$'000 Us$'000
% SR BN & Auditor’s remuneration
— ZE R — audit services 193 179
— IER B AR5 — non-audit services 34 27
WME BENZETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 2,771 2,624
REFERERE Provision for impairment of obsolete
inventories 31 247
B 5 e WOk TE R (B B Provision for impairment of trade receivables 13 10
H i & W Bk IE R (B B Provision for impairment of other receivables — 15
EFLW SRR Net exchange gain (105) (16)
BRRBAZNTFE KA Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 44,363 52,944
T REFHLEEERX Operating lease charges in respective of land
and building 498 510
ot 2%k AR Research and development costs 431 1,274
HEWE HENMRKXHEHEIE Losses on disposals of property, plant and
equipment 62 7
HEREFEEKS Gain on disposals of intangible assets — (34)
IRAEEMMITERIZ K EAM  Administrative penalty and other related
HEAE R () ginkgo product expenses (note) 3,953 —
A E M Write off of intangible assets 9 729
7 & 8 Write off of inventories 458 —
TE & b 7 & SR IE # 4E Amortisation of prepaid land lease payment 63 64
| & E Amortisation of intangible assets 620 630
BT A(BHEE E5H ) Employee costs (including directors’
remuneration)
—TEk%F2 — Wages and salaries 10,934 10,688
— E B KET 8 — Defined contribution plan 2,401 2,100
13,335 12,788

GEE

Note:

R=ZZT—AF+=A ARAREZETRRAIEKLE
HEHR AR (R ZLE])E S ARY18,290,000
7€ (2,931,000 7T) WTEIIH - RESEBRRE @
EQEEEERLTEEHEEERMIRRANASE
ROBRYELAERBERAGBRRAER &R
EBIRER - HBERTENTHRERBO G -
HApFENEX{1563,000% 7T © R T HRETATEM
BRREREFREBIRER-ZT—NFER -

In December 2015, an administrative penalty of RMB18.29 million
(US$2,931,000) was imposed on Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company Limited
(“Ningbo Liwah”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in relation to
the breach of rules and regulations in the production and sale of sub-standard
ginkgo tablets in the PRC during the investigation conducted by the China Food
and Drug Administration and the relevant regulatory authorities in the PRC. The
administrative penalty on Ningbo Liwah is required to be settled by instalments
of which US$563,000 was paid during the year and the remaining balance is
included in “other payables and accruals” and would be repayable in 2016.

BRAEBE B4R R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 09




I IE TR &R B 5T
Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-T—AF+=H=1—HI1:-FE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015

10. EENAEESH A LT Y 10. Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest Paid
Individuals

E%%ﬁ@ﬂ Directors’ remuneration
B BN TARRIE S K MAam0 The aggregate amount of remuneration paid and payable to the
e directors of the Company are as follows:

ot & B
Other emoluments
Fe - 2RA RIKER
wne ENEAN sHEHR Bt
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
and benefits benefit plans

Fees inkind contributions Total
FER TER FER FE=xn
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
BEZZ-RE+-A=T—HLEFE Yearended 31 December 2015
BTESE: Executive director:
2ER Liu Bang Min — 298 6 304
FHMTESE: Non-executive directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 — — 39
= Lee Jin Yi — — - -
%5 B Tang Jun — - — —
x5 3(RMZT—"F=A=1HEE) TaoFang Fang (resigned on 30 March 2016) — - — —
EMBR(WR=ZZ—A"E=A=+HHT) YipPuiling, Rebecca
(resigned on 30 March 2016) — — — —
BUFRTES: Independent non-executive directors:
BRicfs Chan Kee Huen, Michael 35 - - 35
B8 Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 35 - — 35
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 32 — — 32
141 298 6 445
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HE=-ZT—AF+= A=+ —H 1L/ For the year ended 31 December 2015

10. Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest Paid

Individuals (Continued)
Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

Hh B <
Other emoluments

Fe R RIRAEF

we EWEF BEIES @it
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits benefit plans
Fees in kind contributions Total
Txn FTEn Txr TFTEn
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000  US$'000
BE-Z-—MF+-A=1—HILFE Yearended 31 December 2014
BOESE: Executive director:
2ER Liu Bang Min = 365 18 383
FHMTESE: Non-executive directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 = = 39
= Lee Jin Yi — — — —
% 8 Tang Jun = 10 — 10
/5% Tao Fang Fang — — — —
Bme Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca — — — —
BUFRTES: Independent non-executive directors:
B e Chan Kee Huen, Michael 32 — — 32
B Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 32 — — 32
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 29 = = 29
132 375 18 525

BEEFHRAAERRBE_F 5
F+-A=+-BR-F-BmFE+=A=
+-BLEEEEAMS HRHE -

HE-T—hF+T-_A=-t+—HEKZ=ZF—
NE+—A=+—HLLFE ~EEHE X
BEREZESHEMALERS FA LTI
TREBE  EAMAKREBR S MAKE
EEHEE -

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 31 December
2014, no emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or
any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group.
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10. EENAEESH A LT Y 10. Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest Paid

(#8) Individuals (Continued)
EEEEHAL Five highest paid individuals
AEZERSHFALTEERARR—ZEE (= The five highest paid individuals consisted of one (2014: one)
T—HF:—F) BEFHEFERLX director of the Company, details of whose remuneration are
FIROMARB - R A (ZE — I reflected in the analysis presented above. Details of remuneration
F N EEFATHHFMFAFBOT: of the remaining four (2014: four) highest paid individuals are as
follows:
—ZE—hF —E—nmF
2015 2014
FEx FE7
US$'000 Us$'000
e RUENEYMEF Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 300 818
ERNEEEESRE Compensation for loss of office paid 131 —
RONAE T 5 B4 5K Retirement benefit plans contributions 14 48
#Et Total 445 866
SAFLEREIEEEA T TN F The remuneration paid to each of the above non-director
TE s : individuals were within the following bands:
—E-RF —E—E
2015 2014
AE A#

No of individuals  No of individuals

= %129,0003 7T Nil-US$129,000 4 —
129,0012E JT £193,5003 7T US$129,001-US$193,500 — —
193,5013€ JT £258,0003 T US$193,501-US$258,000 — 4
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R BiE X Income Tax Expense
—E-8F —EF—NmF
2015 2014
SRES FET
Us$'000 Us$'000

EHIRE — R E A EAER Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax
(MEZmERD ("EIT")

— FEHIA — tax for the year 1,950 3,596
— BAFEEEEE — over provision in respect of prior years (315) (122)
1,635 3,474
i & % 18 (M 5% 25) Deferred tax (note 25) 625 614
FT18 % 5 2 Income tax expense 2,260 4,088

EFBELNERPRNTBADRAS
B 48 P FE B 75 R A M 1R A R TR R AT

st
H o
A

BIEFECERESRE(DEMREFE]D
MEERME  PEMEBARNKRERA
25% (ZZF — P4 : 25%) °

AEEMENBEARCERERTES
MBREE ZA%RNEETLEMF

B -

REBEEXMEBTE - EROIFOER - #
FREREBERBNERAES THH
BE BERNNAEEBERNENE
BRBEEMEN  AKE-—HKEES
EREXEGNTENBARAIZHL
BEEMEH -

Tax on assessable profits arising in the PRC has been calculated at
the applicable rates of tax prevailing in the tax jurisdiction in which
the Group operates.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2014: 25%).

Two subsidiaries of the Group have been certified as new high
technology enterprises in the PRC and enjoy a preferential EIT rate
of 15%.

According to the EIT Law, its rules and regulations, enterprises that
engage in certain qualifying agricultural business are eligible for
certain tax benefits, including full EIT exemption on profits derived
from such business. A subsidiary of the Group in the PRC engaged
in qualifying agricultural business is entitled to full exemption of
EIT.

BRAEBE B4R R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 1 3
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HE-T—AF+=H=1—HI1:-FE Forthe year ended 31 December 2015
. TEHEX(E) 11. Income Tax Expense (Continued)
FRAMGEHRAXEGEEEREMEE The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit
W 25 7% BT 7S BR P45 250 Al A A1) 69 TEEXZDT : before income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income as follows:

—E-—FHE —E—OF
2015 2014
FEn FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
B BT 15 74 A1 Vs ) Profit before income tax 4,331 18,068
LE BN AR AERAER  Tax on profit at the rates applicable to the
MEFERBIE jurisdictions concerned 771 3,554
TAHBRAIOREEE Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 2,511 1,256
AR A BB TS 2 2 Tax effect of non-taxable income (53) (52)
JE A Bk & 8 B Bk 42 0 A BY Tax effect of share of post-tax profits of
M2 an associate (357) (356)
BEFEBRERE Over provision in respect of prior years (315) (122)
RYHEMBARNFEER Tax exemption granted to PRC
subsidiaries (131) (83)
Hity Others (166) (109)
FrigBiA Income tax expense 2,260 4,088

1 1 4 Annual Report 2015 £ #R



12.

13.

BRI ot

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE=-ZT—AF+= A=+ —H 1L/ For the year ended 31 December 2015
=t 12. Dividends
—E-HfF — M
2015 2014
SRES FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
FARIRDTKNRKRE Dividend recognised as distribution
during the year:
—E-RFFREKRE —FK 2015 interim dividend — HK3.44 cents
3.447% L (£90.443 L) (approximately US0.44 cents) per
share 1,841 —
—T-WFERPKE —F/ 2014 final dividend — HK8.74 cents
8747l (H91.13Z4l) (approximately US1.13 cents) per share 4,676 —
T -OFFRERE — 8/ 2014 interim dividend — HK9.54 cents
9547\l (#91.23%=1L) (approximately US1.23 cents) per share — 5,107
T —F R E — T 2013 final dividend — HK6.95 cents
6.9578 Il (£70.93 1lli) (approximately US0.9 cents) per share — 3,719
6,517 8,826

E’\‘ REHARE EFERRNEZE
E—AF+=-A=1+— ElJtiJ*E’H%HH
Hﬁ B & 85998 1L (#9077 (L) » #B 5T
24859000;‘%7%(2@3207000%7%)(*7
—NFE HE_ZTZ—NF+_A=+—
HIEFERKRBIRE BEAS 7451 (4
113%4)) - AR Hﬁ%)‘%ﬂzﬁﬁ%ﬁ*
HE®R - FAEE - EERERERR
%EIE%H@E@Z%EA\O

BRER
EREXRBIIZARREEAEGRA
si A & £ 415,000,000% 2 377 A% (=
T —PU4E : 415,000,000 I D) 51 & -

AEBRFAR E-—FEYEELESE

Bt e

13.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
HK5.99 cents (approximately US0.77 cents), totally amounting to
HK$24,859,000 (approximately US$3,207,000) in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: final dividend of HK8.74
cents (approximately US1.13 cents) in respect of the year ended
31 December 2014) per share has been proposed by the directors
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
general meeting. The proposed final dividends have not been
recognised as a liability at the reporting date.

Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company and
415,000,000 shares in issue during the year (2014: 415,000,000
shares).

The Group had no potential dilutive shares during the year and
prior year.
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14. X -BERRE 14. Property, Plant and Equipment
BFRBE e RE KRARRE EEIRE @it
Furniture
Building Motor and  Construction
and plant Machineries  vehicles  equipment in progress Total
FTET TEn TEx FTxn FTxn FTET
Us$'000 US$'000  US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
R-ZF-HMH$¥—-A—H At 1 January 2014
KA Cost 27,371 11,314 1,078 2,408 36 42,207
2 E Accumulated depreciation (3,032) (2,799) 437) (927) — (7,195)
REFE Net carrying amount 24,339 8,515 641 1,481 36 35,012
BE-Z-WF+-_A=1+—HILFE Yearended 31 December 2014
FNEEFE Opening net carrying amount 24,339 8,515 641 1,481 36 35,012
B X AR Exchange adjustment (220 77 (6) (12) 1 (314)
NE Additions 447 1,293 53 391 574 2,758
e Depreciation (1,015) (1,083) (131) (395) = (2,624)
BE Disposals — ) — (12) - (13)
HERIRER Transfer from construction in
progress 420 = = — (420) —
FREEFE Closing net carrying amount 23,971 8,647 557 1,453 191 34,819
RZZE-WE+-A=+—H At 31 December 2014
A Cost 27,996 12,509 1,121 2,739 191 44,556
e Accumulated depreciation (4,025) (3,862) (564) (1,286) — (9,737)
REEE Net carrying amount 23,971 8,647 557 1,453 191 34,819
BE-T-—AF+-A=F+—HILLFE Yearended 31 December 2015
FNREEE Opening net carrying amount 23,971 8,647 557 1,453 191 34,819
[E 5 A% Exchange adjustment (1,411) (521) (26) (77) (5) (2,040)
NE Additions 616 1,781 70 272 946 3,685
nE Depreciation (1,039) (1,208) (126) (398) = (2,771)
BE Disposals = (22 (48) 7) — (87)
fERIRER Transfer from construction in
progress 1,132 = = = (1,132) =
FRKEFE Closing net carrying amount 23,269 8,677 427 1,233 — 33,606
R=ZE—RF+=-A=1+—A At 31 December 2015
A Cost 28,061 13,426 1,043 2,751 = 45,281
R E Accumulated depreciation (4,792) (4,749) (616) (1,518) — (11,675)
REFE Net carrying amount 23,269 8,677 427 1,233 — 33,606

R-EBE-—ME+-_F=+—8 FKEE
/£7,400,0003 7T M) & T 97 3£ B 4K 8 DA B
FIRTRERBITEE(HFE24) - R
T—RF+-_A=+—8" BHEKFT
I ENRGBHRITHERBEITEER -

1 1 6 Annual Report 2015 £ #R

As at 31 December 2014, certain properties with a carrying
amount of US$7,400,000 were pledged to secure the banking
facilities and bank borrowings (note 24). There were no properties
pledged to secure the banking facilities and bank borrowings as at
31 December 2015.
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HE=-ZT—AF+= A=+ —H 1L/ For the year ended 31 December 2015

15. Prepaid Land Lease Payment

—E-1F —ZE-mF
2015 2014
FERn F=ET
US$’000 Us$'000
BAEI  RUTHAAFEA:  Outside Hong Kong, held on:
— R HIFE A — medium term lease 2,213 2,413
BRI AREBEEMRE D Less: Current portion included in current
assets (55) (59)
SFASERBEENIEREEES  Non-current portion included in non-
current assets 2,158 2,354
FHREFEE Opening net carrying amount 2,413 2,499
FREHHE Amortisation for the year (63) (64)
e H 7 & Exchange adjustment (137) (22)
FREEFE Closing net carrying amount 2,213 2,413
IREERRE Gross carrying amount 2,723 2,890
25T 8 5 Accumulated amortisation (510) (477)
BREFE Net carrying amount 2,213 2,413
RZE—WOF+-A=+—8 ' KHAE As at 31 December 2014, certain prepaid land lease payment with
7/\%951,000%TEE"J;E*:HEﬁii@*ﬂE%WE carrying amounts of US$951,000 were pledged to secure the
B RGRITHME RRITEE (W banking facilities and bank borrowings (note 24). There was no
) RZF—RF+=A=+—H # prepaid land lease payment pledged to secure the banking facilities
ERMN LA ERRCEA AR RT and bank borrowings as at 31 December 2015.

MERRITEE -
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16. B EE 16. Intangible Assets
AERER
FHH R M
BRAHE BWSEMNR BB A A BEME @t
Exclusive Indefinite-
distribution Technical  Development lived technical
rights know-how costs know-how Total
Tx=n TEx T=x TEx TEx
US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
(Ff Ea) (Bff = b) (Fft ) (Bft 3 d)
(note a) (note b) (note ¢) (note d)
R=ZT—NF—F—H At 1 January 2014
A Cost 495 7,536 6,916 = 14,947
R EH Accumulated amortisation = (1,513) (133) — (1,646)
REFE Net carrying amount 495 6,023 6,783 — 13,301
BE-_T-NF+-A=+—HILFE Yearended 31 December 2014
FUREFE Opening net carrying amount 495 6,023 6,783 = 13,301
[E 5 % Exchange adjustment (5) (57) (53) — (115)
NE Additions — 52 2,710 9,078 11,840
B Amortisation 33) (597) = = (630)
gl Write off = = (729) = (729)
RE Disposals — — (368) — (368)
FREREFE Closing net carrying amount 457 5,421 8,343 9,078 23,299
R=ZE-—NF+=-A=+-—H At 31 December 2014
A Cost 490 7,520 8,474 9,078 25,562
REt#H Accumulated amortisation (33) (2,099) (131) — (2,263)
REFE Net carrying amount 457 5,421 8,343 9,078 23,299
BE-Z-RFT-A=T—HILFE Yearended 31 December 2015
FNREEE Opening net carrying amount 457 5,421 8,343 9,078 23,299
[E 5 A% Exchange adjustment (25) (291) (616) — (932)
NE Additions = = 3,501 — 3,501
B Amortisation 32) (588) = = (620)
g Write off = = ©) = ©)
FREEFE Closing net carrying amount 400 4,542 11,219 9,078 25,239
R-E-AF+-A=+—A At 31 December 2015
A Cost 462 7,086 11,342 9,078 27,968
2t Accumulated amortisation (62) (2,544) (123) = (2,729)
HREFE Net carrying amount 400 4,542 11,219 9,078 25,239

1 1 8 Annual Report 2015 £ #R



16.

mEEE(E)
 EE—AFE+ - A=+—HIEFE
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HWERHE BREBZ ERVEREAR
& 182,279,000 T (WARE(TARED
14,800,0007T) A & 18 42 B >K 2= Al 51| B2 FF) 2%
BHE - RRAFIERZEESESZE KA -
A BRI - MBEE - EF) - FOE
MPBRETFRELRE (CRRAYIEMAEE
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Intangible Assets (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group decided to
terminate several research and development projects which were
under development, mainly due to the surging bulk pharmaceutical
costs. An impairment loss of US$9,000 (2014: US$729,000) was
recognised in administrative expenses to write the carrying amount
of the intangible assets down to its recoverable amount of zero.

Notes:

(a) Exclusive distribution rights
In December 2013, the Group entered into an exclusive agreement
with a supplier to secure the distribution rights of 10 years for one
pharmaceutical product in the PRC. This exclusive right will amortise on
a straight-line basis over 10 years, being the period of the distribution
rights, starting from 1 January 2014.

(b) Technical know-how mainly represents techniques and formulae acquired
for the development and production of certain pharmaceutical products.

With effect from 1 July 2011, technical know-how in relation to the oral
disintegrating tablets had been amortised on a straight-line basis over 11
years.

In 2013, Ningbo Liwah, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a pharmaceutical technology transfer agreement with
Tianjin Longbai Biological Engineering and Technology Company Limited
(“Longbai”), an indirect subsidiary of CIH. Pursuant to the agreement,
Ningbo Liwah agreed to acquire from Longbai the misoprostol
development project for a cash consideration of US$2,279,000
(approximately Renminbi (“RMB”) 14,800,000). The misoprostol
development project comprised the know-how and related materials
and technology, intellectual properties, patent, permit(s) and license(s),
and certain supporting equipment (“Misoprostol Development Project”).
The consideration will be paid by Ningbo Liwah to Longbai in cash in
several milestone payments. Up to the year ended 31 December 2015,
Ningbo Liwah had paid US$719,170 (approximately RMB4,670,000). The
remaining consideration had been disclosed as commitment at the end
of the reporting date (note 30).

BRAEBE B4R R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 1 9
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BREaE (&

GEIRCY)

© BERAZEEUBREENBELD
B (AR ERD) -

Notes:
(©)

EERBRATHNAEREERERAFY R
AERBEENABERFRATRHARS
mER MR AR RS o b F N EE
AR — BRI REAEEKAEE - i ZEmIF A
BERET

e M ERE LT RE BERAEEELA
WOREMHEERS - AEREBFHOA
BEETEETHEE YRESEMEREE
FRETFERENR  MEEFRETE
R AFH MR ER TR E  SER
Z i T RE R -

AEREAFHORMERNAETSL
LEBKA R EFI&EFFA] -

RZE-—NEF=A-+/\B  ARENMEE
2EMBARREEE(FE)BRAT(E
EEZXR)NWVEFBFITLEEBERZ @ Bt
MERBMALEEERREEE(BREA
BEEQAMOBN  EERTE  HEB

B BEGCERBEREELR)  RDFILFFA
Wk NEBHBEXRBEEREEA NS

B (TRERS  BPIRAE)) KT - 235
% R {8 58,000,000 T & A 3 - hn& %8
&= /41,500,000 7T ) %8 71 B 72 78 - 3R (2
BAAESEXREHEERERN) -

ZEEERESRENEEENKY &
UM ERSHEERAERERHEN — K
AE  EBAMABERERENEREERE
B A M BT P A A R
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16. Intangible Assets (Continued)

(Continued)
Development costs mainly represent intellectual property rights (“IPRs")
generated internally for the pharmaceutical technology.

The directors consider these IPRs have indefinite useful lives as there
is no foreseeable limit on the period of time over which the IPR in
pharmaceutical industry is expected to provide cash flows. These IPR can
be renewable in a period of time at minimal cost and the products are
continuing in the market.

If the IPR becomes impaired, the carrying amounts of the asset should be
written down or written off immediately to expense. IPR with indefinite
useful lives is not amortised and are tested for impairment annually at
each financial year end or more frequently if there are indications that
IPR with indefinite useful lives might be impaired.

Indefinite-lived technical know-how represents a perpetual royalty-free
licence with no termination.

On 28 March 2014, Lansen Medicine (Hong Kong) Limited (“LMHK"),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into (i)
the asset purchase agreement with Novartis pursuant to which Novartis
agrees to transfer to LMHK the transferred assets (including know-how,
books and records, specified trademarks, commercial information and
medical information relating to the pharmaceutical product), and (i) the
licence agreement to grant the licences, relating to the pharmaceutical
product in the territory (i.e. the PRC, excludes Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan) for a total cash consideration comprising an upfront payment of
US$8,000,000, plus additional milestone payments of a total maximum
US$1,500,000, linked to sales achieved by LMHK.

The pharmaceutical product contains specific active pharmaceutical
ingredients and it is marketed and sold as a cream under trademark
Sicorten Plus in the territory. It will primarily be used to treat certain
corticosteroid-responsive inflammatory skin diseases secondary infection.
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(GRS 17. Goodwiill
—E-8F —EF—NmF
2015 2014
SRES FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
REE Carrying amount 6,824 6,824

AREBWBERIERAEEZECRI)
BERABRRINAED - ZFERH AR
BEiEAR-

AEERSEAMBREEFRADHELETT
FERBENR  HETFRBETEER
AE - R SRE M ETTRE R -

SRERANAME  AELAERFHE
RHNEBLEEEIRE—BARESELE
- BRIEXEBRAEEREEENE
MEBAT  HEDBELEDHN[E
g -

bR ELBUAKESBHNEER
HEZHERKPADT

ZRTEEBEUNATNOERAERE
BREEETE - Rt EAEREREE
BEEHERRAFHOVBKEENRS
MERBARIAOFTER(ZFT N
F:10%) c BEBAFHHNRESRERHA
BREOREA - MR RETIRIBE BT
EEERAMNE - EREEFEENE
EBERJXIVERESRARE -
s ETERBEEERENE - AH
EENDERZEMBERRUARERE
HHERRNEY - EEERE EF
HEBRRAGLRANSELEHEITIE
HERHEBBSETKROAE -

BE_ZT—AFt+t-_A=1+—HBItFE
AEBEEERITE  EWNE2EEHEKA
FRFHERNEFEENRSELAS
iz 3 R (B o

The Group acquired Ningbo Liwah and Lansen Medicine
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (“Shenzhen Lansen”). These
transactions have been accounted for by the acquisition method of
accounting.

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment at each financial
year end, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives have been allocated to one CGU,
including subsidiaries with principal activities of manufacturing
and trading of specialty pharmaceuticals which is identical to the
“Specialty pharmaceuticals” under operating segment.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGU and its
major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined based
on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period, and discount rate of 14% (2014: 10%).
The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the
five-year period is 0% which is based on pharmaceutical industry
growth forecast. Other key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which
include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is based
on the unit’s past performance and management’s expectations
for the market development. Management believes that any
reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, management of the
Group determines that there are no impairments of any of its CGU
containing goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives.

BRAEBE B4R R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 2 1
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18. RBEE QTR 2 Em

18. Interest in an Associate

—E-1F —ZE-mF
2015 2014
FEn FET
Uss$'000 Us$'000
JE(EEEFE Share of net assets 15,753 16,078
o Goodwill 17,937 19,035
33,690 35,113
EEAEERBRSHBANHL NGRS Details of the Group's associate at the end of the reporting date is
I NE as follows:
HMRLEER AEEFASEEEERR
NEER = REENEH FTEXK
Place of Proportion of ownership
incorporation and interest and voting power
Name of entity operation held by the Group Principal activity
—E-HF —T0F
2015 2014
HMIRAYRERNDERRRE FE 21.5% 21.5% £ ERF BN E R
(MRIARZD)
Zhejiang Starry Pharmaceutical The PRC Production of bulk

Company Limited (“Starry”)

FtBt e R B TR A R ERAR

B E YN

REBHR  AAYERERODERR
MEERSTEESEEEEZE8 ]

e RZTE-RF=ZANLBEL
RB LT -

1 2 2 Annual Report 2015 £ #R

B

MG o
/uE

on 9 March 2016.

pharmaceuticals and
intermediates

The above associate was accounted for using the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements.

Subsequent to the reporting date, Starry has obtained the approval
from China Securities Regulatory Commission for the initial public
offering of its shares and is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
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18. REtE NTFI 2= (1E) 18. Interest in an Associate (Continued)
ERAAREEBEARNTBER N EZSR Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
Fan T associate is set out below:
—E-HF —ZT—NEF
2015 2014
FEx FET
Us$'000 US$'000
R+=—HA=+—8H As at 31 December
mEBEE Current assets 86,892 65,832
FERBEE Non-current assets 148,965 127,708
mENBE Current liabilities (107,471) (81,937)
ERBAE Non-current liabilities (57,902) (40,981)

BE+=-A=+—HLEE Year ended 31 December

WA Revenue 111,482 107,152
F & A Profit for the year 11,049 11,017
FEHMPEK Other comprehensive income for the year — —
FEE2HW BT Total comprehensive income for the year 11,049 11,017
FEBEHE R A AR Dividends received from the associate
during the year 1,517 836
VA E4E it 89 B 75 8 B} B AR & BA TS SRR P Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
RRBERR 2R REEN YR : the carrying amount of the interest in an associate recognised in

the consolidated financial statements:

—E2-1F —ZT-mF
2015 2014
FTEx FE
US$'000 Us$'000
RIKM A A EILE R Equity attributable to owners of Starry 67,841 68,817
REBRR AR #E#Ez Proportion of the Group’s ownership
Lt Bl interest in Starry 21.5% 21.5%
14,586 14,796
[ Goodwill 17,937 19,035
REERAFERAENTE Effect of fair value adjustments at
acquisition 1,345 1,427
HE A Other adjustments (178) (145)
REBRAAZM#Ez=REE Carrying amount of the Group's interest
in Starry 33,690 35,113

BRAEBE B4R R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 123
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19. FE

Inventories
—E-8F —EF—NmF
2015 2014
FEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
R R Raw materials 2,126 2,010
& m Work-in-progress 5,951 8,370
&1 B mn Finished goods 9,385 6,500
17,462 16,880

NEBEE-"T—AFt+-_A=+—HIFE
N EREMHEERRNEmEEH
264,000 7T (= F — PO 4 : 247,000 7T)
B o

R-ZZE—AFNA  AEBEHREWRE
4,272,000 E T AS B FEE K ZXE
R ZSEECEHME - ZBEEFEEN
BARAEHRASENRETUHE - ~EE
BRIEREBL MRABRRENZRLS
HERBERENBKARRETNETE -
R-ZZ—hE+-_A=1+—8  EkXRE
BELRREERARRGESVBHHRE
ERAR - FAHKERRAR 2K
[B] & %8 - #% 76 K 2R HA s 7 32 0] DA MU ER B
F AR o
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, provisions of
US$264,000 (2014: US$247,000) against the carrying value of raw
materials and finished goods were made.

In September 2015, there was a flooding at the Group's
warehouse, US$4,272,000 of the Group’s inventories were
destroyed or damaged. Such inventories were fully written off. The
losses on the damaged inventories were covered by the insurance
policies of the Group. The Group is now claiming losses and the
amount of the ultimate insurance claims will be in accordance with
the terms and provisions of insurance policies. As at 31 December
2015, insurance compensation receivable and an insurance
compensation income was not recognised in the consolidated
financial statements. Any amounts eventually recoverable from
the insurers will be recognised in the future periods only when it is
certain to be received.
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20. Trade and Other Receivables

—E-8F —E—OF
2015 2014
FEx FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000
g 5’ W GRIE Trade receivables 30,779 38,716
BB 5 ERIB R E B Less: provision for impairment of trade
receivables (229) (233)
30,550 38,483
FE W R & Bills receivables 10,999 19,540
=) e IE&FEH&—J—TF Trade and bills receivables 41,549 58,023
T8 5 FRIR B b FE W5k Prepayments and other receivables 14,671 12,013
56,220 70,036
BEFERRE ’é’% E A e W R IEH) AR E The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and

BEREQAFERE -

other receivables approximate their fair values.

AEENBEXERERFIEM FH0E The Group has a policy of allowing an average credit period of 90
1208 (ZZE—M4 : 90HZ120H)WEE to 120 days to its customers (2014: 90 to 120 days).
Hj o

BRAEBE B4R R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 2 5
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20. E5 K% H B WRRIE (&)
REZZAH BEREEHL XK
B 5 B 5 e ORI R I (FORR R
BEER)KRESTMT

20. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Based on the invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade and bills
receivables (net of impairment losses) of the Group as of the end of
the reporting date is as follows:

—ZE-AfF —E-mF

2015 2014

FTEx FET

US$'000 Us$'000

90H KA T 90 days or below 34,143 41,012
912180H 91-180 days 3,547 9,610
1812365H 181-365 days 3,859 7,401
41,549 58,023

REBERE S FEWGIE & B E B 4 6%
£ +E 48 BR T {57,406,0003% T (— T — [0
£ : 5,936,000 7T) W E YL FIE + 2
WHRERREAHEAHEAEE R
WEEETIREH %S HRIEEZER
HYERREENBIREFER - RIE
BARELER ARAEERAE BAREA
LTeWESERNEE  BESKKAWEKT
2HUE - A B ARZEESRIELR
BEE AEEVERZSEHRFTEE
A m o

AEECDEHE Y RBIERE S EUKK

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of US$7,406,000 (2014:
US$5,936,000) which are past due as at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. These
relate to a number of independent customers of whom there
is no recent history of default. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

The Group's ageing analysis of past due but not impaired trade

HERWR DT T receivables is as follows:
—F-IF B
2015 2014
FER FET
Us$'000 US$'000
#HAR1Z90H Past due over 1-90 days 3,547 5,481
#1912 275H Past due over 91-275 days 3,859 455
7,406 5,936
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20. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)
Movement on the Group’s provision for impairment of trade
receivables is as follows:

—E-RF —E-mF

2015 2014

FER FxT

US$'000 Us$'000

n—A—H At 1 January 233 918

ME 5, o & Exchange adjustment (14) (12)
B 5 W RIE R EEE Provision for impairment of trade

receivables 13 10

15 178 /] W [B] 1 i 85 B £ B8 Amounts written off as uncollectible 3) (683)

R+=ZA=+—H At 31 December 229 233

B 5 i WK TR RO R (B 7 s 5 B (8 B
BB E 5 B WK IART I o @RI E A
RUHRATZEBEMBRANTAER
EHRERRO BUGKEBH T KE - K
SEYERZFERTEEMNERS -

R-Z—hE+-A=+—8 " K@K
RIRERE 5 U 5K 523,144,000 7T
(ZZ— g4 :32,547,000E L) 258
5 8 UL R TH B 3R % 3 HA D A R FRRE B
ZFREH -

REZE-_ZE—RHAF+_A=+—HILF
EA - -AEERMEMEERRAATS
BREMNDBHIERER - MEWKEEXR
HAEEBEBHRESBMEB TR
SKIA o | BIR T FH & Bk 7% IWER A P
SHRIE33I%E  EERREESFH
HiF- Bt  AEEmEGREREE
BENMEENKORRE RZZT—MHF
TZA=T—"AMECRER -

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables is made for
individually impaired trade receivables. The individually impaired
receivables mainly relate to customers that were in financial
difficulties and only a portion of the receivables is expected to
be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of US$23,144,000
(2014: US$32,547,000) were neither past due nor impaired. These
related to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group discounted
part of its bills receivables with full recourse to financial institutions.
In the event of default by the bills receivables, the Group was
obliged to pay the financial institutions the amount in default.
Interest was charged at 3.3% per annum on the proceeds received
from the financial instructions until the date the bills receivables
pay. The Group was therefore exposed to the risks of credit losses
and late payment in respect of the discounted bills. There were no
discounted bills as at 31 December 2014.

BRAEBE B4R R AR A A)  Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 1 27
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20. E5 K% H B WRRIE (&)

AR AEERBEERERNB KD
DEB KB - WEARZXZETHFEE
R R FIORRIEEREMEEN
HE RZE—hF+ZA=+—H8 &
W 22 454,235,000 7T 4 48 02 & B B 7
WMERERR  BEEEAFZEETESM
g - MR ZHNMEREBEEIEREE
ERBE(MEF2HFABERN  EER
WHREKEEXASEENSREEN
FreEElE N —RAF+=-_A=1+—
H SHEREERAENEEERMESR
& &4,235,0003% 7T °

HRERREBEERZEZTSRMEE -
BASEERETERUREENEE °

R-Z—hE+-_A=+—8 BREEAS
5,225,0003 JT (= Z — O £ : 14,668,000
EMNE TERERSEAUIRSER
TEEME24) - HEAENEEER
5,000,000 7t (== — P £ : 13,500,000
EJT) °

R-_ZE—RAFE+-_A=+—H BARE
HETRPARBERBKZKEIEZ 2 HK
B BB Bt % 55 FE U 30T R 3R L b B UK
XIS E B 51,0005 T (ZF — Y 4 -
1,000F70) - AL B ER AL FEH 5
BEMIRKIF SR -
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20. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

The discounting transactions did not meet the requirements
in 1AS 39 for de-recognition of financial assets as the Group
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of the discounted bills receivables. At 31 December 2015, bills
receivables of US$4,235,000 continued to be recognised in the
Group's financial statements even though they have been legally
transferred to the financial institutions. The proceeds of the
discounting transactions were included in borrowings as asset-
backed financing (note 24) until the bills receivables were collected
or the Group settles any losses suffered by the financial institutions.
At 31 December 2015, the asset-backed financing liability related
to discounted bills amounted to US$4,235,000.

Because the bills receivables have been transferred to the financial
institutions legally, the Group did not have the authority to
determine the disposition of the bills receivables.

As at 31 December 2015, certain bills receivables with a carrying
amount of US$5,225,000 (2014: US$14,668,000) were pledged
to secure bank borrowings (note 24). The carrying amount of the
associated liability was US$5,000,000 (2014: US$13,500,000).

As at 31 December 2015, a provision for impairment of other
receivables of US$1,000 (2014: US$1,000) was recognised for
certain long outstanding receivables as these receivables are not
expected to be fully recovered. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.
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20. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)
Movement on the Group’s provision for impairment of other
receivables is as follows:

—E-RF —T—MF

2015 2014

FEx FEx

Us$'000 Us$'000

n—A—H At 1 January 1 649

E X Exchange adjustment — (5)

H & W SR IE R (B B B Provision for impairment of other

receivables — 15

5 7E 7 0] Y 1= i 8 A & B8R Amounts written off as uncollectible — (658)
®n+=—A=+—8H At 31 December 1 1

BOREE R - Ll & E W KRB H SR
B LlEBRABRENEEEESTH
I &R RS B RIRA R -

Except for the amount impaired, none of the above assets is either
past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances related to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.

FAABEZ AR A R A R Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited 129
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BEABRTER RERRELSE
B

Pledged Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash
Equivalents

—ZE—hF —E—mF

2015 2014

T FEx

Us$'000 Us$'000

Re MIBITHE Cash and bank balances 42,808 42,891
B B IR IRITIE K Less: pledged bank deposits (23,832) (27,072)
RekBEESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 18,976 15,819

RehRTEREBRERITERTFRRESMU
NMREBBE =@ AKA T ERRT
Tk - RITEESRIFERABITHFRM =X
BEFHNEAE - MR EHFEREFAR
TR T 5 M R EREA B -

R_E—AF+_A=+—HBE=_Z—@
FH+-A=+—HBEHRTHERE
AEBARESETHRTMENRBITEER
(Mg E24) ML PR RITE R o

RZE—RE+-A=+—H K&H
7 IR & K& IR 17 45 #4 8 $538,161,0003% T
—ZT— P4 : 36,848,000k 7T) KSR 1T 45
B RERAARBFTERTFRTPELN
RIT - ARBUIERERLBNEE -
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Cash and bank balances comprise cash at banks and in hand, and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rates. Short-term time deposits are placed with
banks and earn interest at market interest rates.

Pledged bank deposits represent the Group’s bank deposits
pledged to secure certain banking facilities and bank borrowings
(note 24) as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2015, included in cash and bank balances of
the Group was US$38,161,000 (2014: US$36,848,000) of bank
balances denominated in RMB placed with banks in the PRC. RMB
is not a freely convertible currency.
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g 25 22. Share Capital
B4 EE ok
Number of
shares Amount
FET
Us$'000
JETE Authorised :
n= 2 mE—F—H - At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014
—WFEF+_A=+—HK and 31 December 2015
—hAF+=—A=+—H 20,000,000,000 200,000
EETREE: Issued and fully paid :
EC__7 mE—H—H - At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014
—FE+-_A=+—HK and 31 December 2015
—£¢+:ﬁ =+—H 415,000,000 4,150

A
5 W
Bt AR AR R RO BEENES -

EERMERERRPEBBEAIRE -
o B B B B 00 A 0 BE = T AT 0 K fr
a2 -

SNEE fE e 1R R BB P B A B A IS R
MR ZH8 -

23. Reserves
Group
The share premium represents the excess over the nominal value
for shares allotted.

The statutory reserve represents appropriation of profits of the PRC
subsidiaries to non-distributable reserve fund account as required
by the relevant PRC statue.

The foreign exchange reserve represents exchange differences

arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries.
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23. & (E) 23. Reserves (Continued)

RAFE Company

R %R E 2 EE st
Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
FETT FETT FETT
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
RZE—NF—H—H At 1 January 2014 39,645 (1,955) 37,690
Az S (Bt 5£12) Dividends (note 12) (8,826) — (8,826)
EEBEANETRS Transactions with owners (8,826) — (8,826)
FEEER Loss for the year — (367) (367)

FEHEMEEMK Other comprehensive income
for the year — — —

FEE2HEWEERE Total comprehensive income for

the year = (367) (367)
R=-ZZ—MNE+=-A=+—H At31December2014 30,819 (2,322) 28,497
Az B (Bt 5E12) Dividends (note 12) (6,517) — (6,517)
BEEFGEANETRS Transactions with owners (6,517) — (6,517)
FEEE Loss for the year — (835) (835)

FEEMEAKE Other comprehensive income
for the year — — =

FEZHEK=EERE Total comprehensive income for

the year = (835) (835)
R=—ZF—HEF+=-HA=+—H At31December2015 24,302 (3,157) 21,145
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. B 24. Borrowings
—E-hF — O
2015 2014
FEx FET
US$’000 Us$'000
EBRITEE Fixed-rate bank borrowings 28,490 21,409
FERITEE Variable-rate bank borrowings 57,246 63,402
EEERBE Assets-backed financing 4,235 —
89,971 84,811
HEM Secured 58,981 54,692
35 Unsecured 30,990 30,119
89,971 84,811
—E-hfF — O
2015 2014
FEx FET
US$'000 Us$'000
RITEE Bank borrowings 85,736 84,811
R—FANEHENEERERAME Assets-backed financing due within
one year 4,235 —
89,971 84,811
—FANEE Repayable within one year 88,881 84,811
R —FENEMRE More than one year, but not exceeding
two years 538 —
HEAMEETNERF More than two years, but not exceeding
five years 552 —
89,971 84,811
N-ZE—RE+=A :—1—— HE—ZT— As at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, certain banking
F+—-_HA=+—H ' &5F4H ‘fj’r\]ﬂﬁb\ facilities are subject to the fulfillment of covenants relating to
HEAREBE FHBAR R RARE AR H certain financial position ratios of the Group, as are commonly
ERTHRANEE EHETHERS % found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the
BOEBELXHPBERR MAKEER Group breaches the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
ZZF DRI EBAIZEREER - become repayable on demand.
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24, fBEF (@) 24. Borrowings (Continued)
AREBTHEZREEZHZNESTER The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants,
RRETHEFNEERHERER A& makes repayments in accordance with the repayment schedule of
ERRABAEEEBENEZZRTE the term loans. The Group does not consider that it is probable
RITAKRAIBEITEENBRERER - for the bank to exercise its discretion to demand repayment for as
R_E—AF+_A=+—HBE=_Z—@ long as the Group continues to meet these requirements. As at 31
F+-_A=+—"H TEEREIRIE December 2015 and 31 December 2014, none of the covenants
B IER R - relating to drawn down facilities had been breached.
RTEENRABUTY EEE: The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are denominated in the

following currencies:
— —T—MF
2015 2014
FEn F=E=T
US$'000 Us$'000
AT RIERR: Represented by:
ARKREE Borrowings in RMB 32,725 28,926
EXTLEE Borrowings in US$ 55,650 51,050
BT(BTHEE Borrowings in Hong Kong Dollars
("HK$") 1,596 4,835
89,971 84,811
— —E-NF
2015 2014
B FEH = Effective interest rate per annum:
IRITEE Bank borrowings 3.38% 3.65%
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24. Borrowings (Continued)

The Group had pledged certain bank deposits, bills receivables,
property, plant and equipment and prepaid land lease payment to
secure the banking facilities and bank borrowings of the Group.
The carrying values of these assets pledged at the reporting date
are as follows:

—E—HE —E—pOE

2015 2014

SPES e FEx

Us$'000 Us$'000

BIEEITER Pledged bank deposits 23,832 27,072
B 1 R R Pledged bills receivables 5,225 14,668
M- BREREE Property, plant and equipment — 7,400
AL EKIE Prepaid land lease payment — 951
29,057 50,091

45 95 $ 4R 17 18 §°30,990,000% T (ZE —
P94F : 30,119,000 JT) AR R &) st AN 55 (&
ETHBATEER -

EERERBERTITNABEKRE LS
MR TER R ENRIER S FAERFH
MEFRHE HBETBREEFTAESZRE
fib FE W R IE (B 5£20) - B RBHRN —F
NEH - WAAREERE -

The unsecured bank borrowings of US$30,990,000 (2014:
US$30,119,000) were guaranteed by the Company or subsidiaries
of the Group.

The asset-backed financing represented the amount of financing
obtained in factoring transactions which did not meet the de-
recognition requirements in IAS 39. The corresponding financial
assets were included in trade and other receivables (note 20).
These borrowings matured within one year and were repayable in
RMB.
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25. EZEBEER 25. Deferred Tax Liabilities
RORKBFH
TEENE BT Hit st
PRC
withholding
tax on Deferred
undistributed development
earnings costs Others Total
FEx FEL FET FEx
US$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
R-ZZ—M¥—-HA—H At 1 January 2014 181 169 28 378
ME AR Exchange adjustment — 1 = 1
P18 % Bk (HFE11) Charge to profit or loss (note 11) = 604 10 614
R-ZZE—NF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2014 181 774 38 993
W-Z—a%—fA—H At 1 January 2015 181 774 38 993
BE 50 58 & Exchange adjustment — (70) - (70)
18 &= 1 (1) Charge to profit or loss (note 11) — 644 (19) 625
RZZE—RF+-A=1+—H At 31 December 2015 181 1,348 19 1,548
BIERPBERDEMERHE BZZEEZN\F Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
—A—B# - FHPBENE AT AT BEECS declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from
MEROIK B BEMBEBIN - 286 01 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided
IR A AR B A B BT 8 2 A1 #959,964,000 for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
X0 (=ZE—JO4 : 55954,000%E 1) Bt differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
e A BT A B B = 2B VE AR T 1A B subsidiaries amounting to US$59,964,000 (2014: US$55,954,000)
B BERAERAEEIEHERHEZHEYN as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
BOEE BZETRE=mag e temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
a8 B & K (O] o differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
26. EF R HMENKIE 26. Trade and Other Payables
—E-RF —T—OF
2015 2014
FEx FET
US$'000 Us$'000
B 5 e3R8 Trade payables 7,250 8,037
B R & Bills payables 4,235 6,946
F i B 38 & FE ET SR IE Other payables and accruals 11,192 13,991
22,677 28,974
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ESREMEARIE(E) 26. Trade and Other Payables (Continued)
BEZEAH BERESEHIL &5 Based on invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade payables of
MEZEMNRIBERESTAOT the Group as at the end of the reporting date is as follows:
—E-1F —E-mF
2015 2014
T FxT
US$'000 Us$'000
90HEIA T 90 days or below 4,680 4,640
91£180H 91-180 days 235 1,033
1812 365H 181-365 days 1,288 927
2 3E365H Over 365 days 1,047 1,437
7.250 8,037
EERA BSREMEMFENERER The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and
EHEAFEES ° other payables approximate their fair values.
HitemaE 27. Other Financial Liabilities
—E2-1F —ZE-mF
2015 2014
T FE
US$'000 Us$'000
n—A—H At 1 January 1,116 —

BAEBEREAFHANFEIME  Contingent consideration arose from the
ENBAEANKIAKRB(H  acquisition of indefinite-lived technical

=F16(d)) know-how (note 16(d)) — 1,078
FA 18 25 30 Bk /9 47 2R [/ B8 (BfJ 78)  Unwinding of discount on provision

charged to profit or loss (note 8) 54 38

R+-—A=+—H At 31 December 1,170 1,116
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28. R AR MK AR R T 28. Company Level Statement of Financial Position
—E-HF —F—@NNF
2015 2014
B T FEx FETT
Note US$'000 Us$'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
NG Interest in a subsidiary 25,020 25,020
REBEE Current assets
NG @] Amount due from a subsidiary 20,196 7,828
RekBEESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 279 5,005
20,475 12,833
BEE Total assets 45,495 37,853
EzRkAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EXRFHE Capital and reserves
AREHEEABGEER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
fi% 2 Share capital 4,150 4,150
&0 % B8 Share premium 23 24,302 30,819
25t E 18 Accumulated losses 23 (3,157) (2,322)
B Total equity 25,295 32,647
REAE Current liabilities
BE Borrowings 19,950 5,000
& =t 2B Accruals 250 206
wesE Total liabilities 20,200 5,206
HEZREE Total equity and liabilities 45,495 37,853
REBEEFE Net current assets 275 7,627
HMEERARBERE Total assets less current
liabilities 25,295 32,647
EZE EZE
Director Director
ZEE A
LIU Bang Min Hou Song
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29. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company

General information of the subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at the end of the reporting
period are set out follows.

MR KL TE BRORBERE AEEFREEGEEZRK
8 BR/ % EE 32 HMEARFEE REREN LB TEXK
Particulars of issued
Country/Place of Principal and fully paid share Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ place of capital/registered interest and voting
Name establishment business capital power held by the Group Principal activities
—B-RF —T—NF
2015 2014
EERAER
Interests held directly
AEBEZERER AR REBRAES N 29,491,360 & B & 100% 100% HEZER
(RBEX 1ETHERR
BB
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands  Hong Kong 29,491,360 ordinary 100% 100% Investment holding
(the "BVI") shares of US$1 each
HEREER

Interests held indirectly

Brilliant Manufacture Limited RBERES
Brilliant Manufacture Limited The BVI

Flash Universal Limited REERES
Flash Universal Limited The BVI
Horizon Network Limited REEZES
Horizon Network Limited The BVI
Magnificent Worldwide Limited REERES
Magnificent Worldwide Limited The BVI
LHERAR BE

Full Keen Limited Hong Kong
BRERE (BB)ERAA BE

Lansen Investments (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong

AEBZ(FR)ARAR )

Lansen Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong

VEEYRB(FE)BRAA B
Liwah Plant Extract (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong

REERARDA N
Point Kin International Limited Hong Kong

N IR EE1E TR E R R 100% 100% HEZER
Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
B IREEIETHEE K 100% 100% RE#EK
Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Bk 1R (B3 T 0 E i AR 100% 100% HEZK
Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
S TR E (B3 T 0 E i AR 100% 100% HEZEBR
Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% 100% Investment holding
N TREEETHERR 100% 100% HEZER
Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Bk 100/% I {E10075 T HY 100% 100% REZER
ERELS
Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100% 100% Investment holding
HK$100
Bk IREEIE T EBR 100% 100% REZER
Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
N 1RE B T E B AR 100% 100% REZER
Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
S TR E B T E B AR 100% 100% HEZBK
Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
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29. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)
General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)

HEMR LKL 3 BRORBERE AEEREAGEESR
g Bx/it% EE$ 2 M EARFEE REEWLLH TEXB
Particulars of issued
Country/Place of  Principal and fully paid share Proportion of ownership
incorporation/ place of capital/registered interest and voting
Name establishment business capital power held by the Group Principal activities
—E-HF —TQUF
2015 2014
MEFEER
Interests held indirectly
BB B Bk 1R E B T E B AR 100% 100% BEXE
LMHK Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% 100% Pharmaceutical
business
REBEFRAA B b 1R EE 17 7T B i AR 100% — BREER
Perfection Link Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% — Investment holding
KERMERRERAR(KRER]D BE &k 1R EE 1 TT B i AR 100% — REER
Natural Dailyhealth Tech Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100% — Investment holding
(“Natural Dailyhealth”)
RIINER & F B (] T a) HE A R #29,498,0007T 100% 100% BEEEET
Shenzhen Lansen The PRC (note a) The PRC RMB29,498,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical
business
BRVE F B (Ff 5 b) hE A R #236,000,0007T 100% 100% BEXH
Ningbo Liwah The PRC (note b) The PRC RMB236,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical
business
BERVERMRRRMERAAF B (B Eb) i E A R #28,000,0007C 100% 100% EEXH
Ningbo Liwah Plant Extraction Technology ~ The PRC (note b) The PRC RMB28,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical
Limited business
ERAERERRAR AR B (Fft ) HE A R #35,000,0007C 100% 100% EEEEEFS
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical Company The PRC (note c) The PRC RMB35,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical
Limited business
ZMALEENEXZBRAF o (B &t a) i A R #3,500,0007T 100% 100% EEEE
Bozhou Lansen Herbal Industry Limited The PRC (note a) The PRC RMB3,500,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical
business
ERPERENRBERAA o B (B Eb) F A R #1,000,0007C 100% 100% EEEEE
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical Technology ~ The PRC (note b) The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% 100% Pharmaceutical
Company Limited business
ERKEREDHBRBRAF i (B &t a) F A R #5,000,0007C 100% — BEXH
Ningbo Dailyhealth Biotechnology Limited  The PRC (note a) The PRC RMB5,000,000 100% — Pharmaceutical
business
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29. Particulars of Subsidiaries of the Company

(Continued)

General information of the subsidiaries (Continued)
Notes:

(a) Established as a limited liability company in the PRC
(b) Established as a wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC
(c) Established as a sino-foreign equity joint venture in the PRC

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
of the year.

7 & B 1Y 4R B Composition of the Group
FEXEHK SEM AL, PR L it B EMBARHE
Place of incorporation/ Number of wholly-owned
Principal activities establishment subsidiaries
—E-HF —ZT-MF
2015 2014
BEXK a3 7 6
Pharmaceutical business The PRC
BEXK e 1 1
Pharmaceutical business Hong Kong
REEK &8 7 5
Investment holding Hong Kong
REZEK RERELES 5 5
Investment holding The BVI
20 17
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30. FBWHEE

30. Financial Commitments

REHE Y EE Operating lease commitment
—E-1F —ZT-mF
2015 2014
FTEx FE
US$'000 Us$'000
RIET AT 2 AR R 28 Future minimum rental payable under
HEENHESH0T - non-cancellable operating lease are as
follows:
15 R Within one year 113 106
FLESF In the second to fifth year 181 —
294 106
AEBUKEEHOEAETYWE - L The Group leases certain properties under operating leases. The
FHNFT—ZRF AAREMBEHA leases terms are between one and five years, with options to renew
SENEEEFE ST HENBERES the lease terms at the expiry dates or at days as mutually agreed
B  ZFHAM T BRFEEMIAE between the Group and the respective landlords. None of these
& o leases includes any contingent rentals.
BAREE Capital commitment
—E-1F —Z—F
2015 2014
T FE
US$'000 Us$'000
EHE RETRA B B AN A Capital commitments authorised and
contracted for:
EREE Intangible assets 4,562 6,341
BERRKE Construction and equipment 7,359 323
11,921 6,664
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31. Related Party Transactions
During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions
with related parties:

—E—RE — 4
2015 2014
T FxT
US$'000 Us$'000
BEEXS: Trading transactions :
ENRANBARIMIERS Processing fee expenses paid to a fellow
subsidiary 1,316 330
MRARMEAREES M Purchase of goods from fellow
subsidiaries 613 644
MEEHBARIEES R Sales of goods to a fellow subsidiary — 11
Ex5 Other transactions :
ENfERMBAAHESRX Rental expenses paid to fellow
subsidiaries 46 33
Bl ERMBAREMEZEBKA Consultancy fee income received from
fellow subsidiaries — 64
IO R & B R W R IB The following balances were outstanding at the end of the

reporting period:

—E-RE — P04

2015 2014

FEx FET

US$'000 US$'000

BEAENGIVEN Amounts owed by fellow subsidiaries 6,565 4,420

K

RAMBARRFERFBEEERmIR
REMTRBMAAE THERNRER - K
BEFRELSERM RERBREXKE
B-N_T-—AFF_T-—OFR K
S B EpL F R B AR R RIE R
EHEMEE  TERBEIRZREMHR
S EMER -

u}

ARBEERE UNLEBEARFG K
EFEEEGRE—RABTEBFPET -

TEEEABFH MMM EI10THK E
FTARRRIESEHNEE -

The amount owed by fellow subsidiaries represented the advances
to suppliers on the goods to be purchased or processing services to
be provided. The amounts outstanding are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand. The Group has not made any allowance
for bad or doubtful debts in respect of amounts owed by fellow
subsidiaries nor has any guarantee been given or received during
2015 or 2014 regarding related party transactions.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the above
related party transactions were conducted on normal commercial

terms and in the ordinary and usual course of business.

Remuneration for key management personnel represents amounts
paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 10.
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32. AER

AEEHHREEELERREZTINS
HMBER - ARENREREENEA
MR LHRBZZZAE BEHREF
BERAESENEHEFHRESRE -

FERR
AEENEERRIERAESEEX
H e AR BARRAREINNSESHEK
ERRRERE LR AEEEEER
EREKREHEAMKERENTGE
& oo

SREEERR AKEEEECRY
EERR HREKEEEEEERE
EEEHNEMMEITIBRIE  UREARK
RETHROBHABEBE -

N-ZE—ME+-A=+—H BHEK
HIBBBEFE2N%REAEEREARF -
RZB—RE+-A=+—8 - #E@EAA
EFPHEBESERKRIBATEIORLIA L o

nBEEERBRER  ERHF IR
FBZIRIT ©

AEBRBEFEAR-—BEBTEER
R URBRZEEERR—EBAKHE
MEERBZEHREEEE -

RBESRR
ARBEFCRYBENRDE SRR
EEERNEEAESENE F - KH
BEehRnPpEEETK-

AEEBRBEFTRMHE  RITRAM
FREERE HEZREAIRERR
EREMNEHEREENABNI MG
MNERERBE SRR -

AEEEBEFEUNR—BEETRBE
TR ARBZERDESHREE
ERBESRBRITE—EBM -
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32. Risk Management

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which
result from its operating and investing activities. The Group’s
risk management is coordinated at its headquarters in close
cooperation with the directors and focuses on actively securing the
Group's short to medium term cash flows.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables. The amounts presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables,
estimated by the Group’s management based on prior experience
and their assessment of the current economic environment.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has formulated a credit policy and delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.

As of 31 December 2014, 21% of the total trade receivables were
due from the Group’s largest customer. There was no individual
customer contributed 10% or more of total trade receivables as at
31 December 2015.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are reputable banks.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to have been effective in limiting the
Group's exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.

Liquidity risk
The directors of the Company have built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the Group's
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group since prior
years and are considered to have been effective in managing
liquidity risk.
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32. Risk Management (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band regardless of
the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based
on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the

AR HRRAENBERT  KEEE extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
SRV BEHRMF R E o amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting
period.
—E-hfF
2015

1FR BHRITE

RER 1225 2E5F 5N E BEREAS

Within Total

one year Between Between contractual
oron oneand twoand Overfive undiscounted

demand two years five years years cash flows
FEx FERx FER FEx FEx
Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000
= Borrowings 90,727 569 581 - 91,877
BORMREREMNERE  Trade and bills payables 11,485 — — — 11,485
HfhpEft 58 & fE5H 58  Other payables and accruals 10,074 — — — 10,074
EtmesmBaE Other financial liabilities — — 500 1,000 1,500
112,286 569 1,081 1,000 114,936

—mE

2014

15 A3 EHRYTER
REX |==nes 285 5FLE E§Mmgﬁu+
Within Total
one year Between Between contractual
oron one and two and Over five  undiscounted
demand  twoyears  five years years cash flows
F=T Fxx F=x F=T FE=x
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 us$'000
EBE Borrowings 86,597 = = = 86,597
B ENREREMNZEE  Trade and bills payables 14,983 — — — 14,983
Eﬁﬂﬁéﬁl TA I st Other payables and accruals 11,970 — — — 11,970
EemBE Other financial liabilities — — — 1,500 1,500
113,550 — — 1,500 115,050
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32. Risk Management (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the “within one year” time band in the above maturity analysis.

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes
in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal transactional currency exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of the financial assets and liabilities held
by the Group’s subsidiaries are denominated in the respective
functional currency of such subsidiaries.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with floating
interest rates. The interest rate and terms of repayment of bank
borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 24. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at the end
of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end
of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.
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Risk Management (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points lower/higher and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's:

o Profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 and retained
profits as at 31 December 2015 would increase/decrease by
US$286,000 (2014: increase/decrease by US$308,000). This
is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest
rates on its variable rate bank borrowings; and

o The Group's equity as at 31 December 2015 would increase/
decrease by US$286,000 (2014: increase/decrease by
US$308,000).

Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category

The carrying amounts presented in the statements of financial
position relate to the following categories of financial assets and
financial liabilities.

—E-HF —E M
2015 2014
FEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
EHMEE Financial assets
Bk & e GRIE Loans and receivables:
B 5 Kk HAth jE W sk 18 Trade and other receivables 47,245 62,043
EEARITER Pledged bank deposits 23,832 27,072
ReEkREZEED Cash and cash equivalents 18,976 15,819
90,053 104,934
EHAas Financial liabilities
HEESE K AT BRI S BB E :  Finandial liabilities at amortised cost:
B Borrowings 89,971 84,811
B 5 I B Ath T IR Trade and other payables 21,559 26,953
111,530 111,764
AT EFABZEMNEEAEE : Finandal liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss:
HEthemBatE Other financial liabilities 1,170 1,116
112,700 112,880
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32. Risk Management (Continued)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 24, cash and bank balances and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall
financing structure. The Group manages the capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The net gearing ratio at the end of the reporting date was as
follows:

—E-RF —E—E

2015 2014

FEx FE

Us$'000 Us$'000

f& 3 (KT 5E24) Borrowings (note 24) 89,971 84,811
WBHeRESEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (note 21)

(Kt &E21) (18,976) (15,819)
B BRI FE R (KT FE21)  Less: Pledged bank deposits (note 21) (23,832) (27,072)
BB HEE Net debt 47,163 41,920
7 &= Equity 101,447 114,605
FRERESLE Net debt to equity ratio 46.5% 36.6%
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32. Risk Management (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial Liabilities

As discussed in note 16d, the Group reached an agreement
with Novartis to acquire a pharmaceutical product on 28 March
2014. The total cash consideration of the transaction comprised
an upfront payment of US$8,000,000, plus additional milestone
payments of a total maximum amount of US$1,500,000, which
would be linked to the sales amount achieved by the Group
subsequently.

The potential undiscounted amount of all future payments that
the Group could be required to make under this contingent
consideration arrangement is between US$0 and US$1,500,000.

The following tables present financial liabilities included in the
condensed consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2015 measured at fair value on a recurring basis
according to the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy has
the following levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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32. A EE(E) 32. Risk Management (Continued)
HttSmasEn L2 FETE(E) Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial Liabilities

(Continued)

ERFN E28R E3K et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FExR FEx FExR FEx

US$'000  US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

—ZT—FHF+=-H=+—H 31 December 2015

=X Liabilities
BATFEFAEBZHEE  Financial liabilities at fair value
=K through profit or loss
—HithemasE — Other financial liabilities — — 1,170 1,170
— — 1,170 1,170
ERF B2 F3 Et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

TETL TET TETL TET
US$'000  US$'000  US$'000  US$000

—Z—WE+=-H=+—H 31 December 2014

BE Liabilities
BAFEGFAEZNEE  Financial liabilities at fair value
af& through profit or loss
—HthemasE — Other financial liabilities — — 1,116 1,116
— — 1,116 1,116
RAEESERH I ARERIEBERNER No gain or loss relating to this contingent consideration has been
sk R o recognised in profit or loss for the current year.
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Risk Management (Continued)
Fair Value Measurements of Other Financial Liabilities

(Continued)

The fair value of the contingent consideration was estimated
by applying the discounted cash flow. The determination of
fair value is based on certain parameters including the discount
rate, the probability of sales achievement and the period of
sales achievement, which are unobservable. The significant
unobservable inputs and relationship of these inputs to fair value
contingent consideration are shown as below:

Significant unobservable

input(s)

Relationship of unobservable inputs to
fair value

Discount rate of 4.7%

Probability of sales

achievement, which is

100%

Period of sales

achievement, which
are year 2020 and year

2023

The higher the discount rate, the lower
the fair value.

The higher the probability of sales
achievement, the higher the fair
value.

The earlier the period of sales
achievement, the higher the fair
value.
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33.

34.

Contingent Liabilities

On 6 July 2015, the Company announced that according to an
announcement published by Shenzhen Neptunus Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (the “Claimant”)’s holding company, the
Claimant, as the Plaintiff, has initiated legal proceedings (the
“Litigation”) against Ningbo Liwah, the Company’s subsidiary. On
24 August 2015, Ningbo Liwah received the writ in relation to the
Litigation. On 15 October 2015, Ningbo Liwah and the Claimant
exchanged evidences in the primarily stage. In the Litigation, the
Claimant alleged that it had suffered certain losses due to the use
of ginkgo extract supplied by Ningbo Liwah in Claimant’s products.
The Claimant is therefore seeking damages of approximately
RMB70 million (approximately US$11.2 million as at 31 December
2015) from Ningbo Liwah, as well as relevant legal fees. The Group
has sought preliminary opinion on the Litigation from its legal
counsel in the PRC, who, based on the information available as of
the date of the consolidated financial statements, is of the opinion
that the amount claimed by the Claimant is highly disputable.
However, as the Group is not able to reliably assess the amount
of provision, the Group has not made any provision against this
Litigation. The Company will, in accordance with the applicable
laws, make every effort to protect its interests and its shareholders’
interests, actively respond to the case and defend its position
vigorously. The Company will closely monitor the development of
this matter and make further announcements if and when there
are any significant developments in relation to it.

Event After the Reporting Date

On 24 March 2016, Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited,
a company incorporated in the BVI and wholly owned by the
Company signed a sale and purchase agreement to acquire
approximately 19.1% equity interest in Haotian Holdings Limited,
the subsidiary of CIH, at a consideration of RMB33 million
(approximately US$5 million) of which RMB28 million is in cash and
RMBS5 million by way of consideration shares in entire issued share
capital of Natural Dailyhealth.
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